Supplemental Listing Document

If you are in any doubt as to any aspect of this document, you should consult your
stockbroker or other registered dealer in securities, bank manager, solicitor, accountant or other
professional adviser.

Application has been made to the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (the “SGX-
ST”) for permission to deal in and for quotation of the Certificates (as defined below). The SGX-ST
takes no responsibility for the contents of this document, makes no representation as to its accuracy
or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from
or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this document. Admission to the Official
List of the SGX-ST is not to be taken as an indication of the merits of SG Issuer, Société Générale,
the Certificates, or the Company (as defined below).

6,700,000 European Style Cash Settled Long Certificates relating to
the ordinary shares of Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited

with a Daily Leverage of 5x

issued by
SG Issuer
(Incorporated in Luxembourg with limited liability)
unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by

Société Générale

Issue Price: $$0.60 per Certificate

This document is published for the purpose of obtaining a listing of all the above certificates
(the “Certificates”) to be issued by SG Issuer (the “Issuer”’) unconditionally and irrevocably
guaranteed by Société Générale (the “Guarantor’), and is supplemental to and should be read in
conjunction with a base listing document dated 21 June 2019 including such further base listing
documents as may be issued from time to time (the “Base Listing Document”) for the purpose of
giving information with regard to the Issuer, the Guarantor and the Certificates. Information relating to
the Company (as defined below) is contained in this document.

This document does not constitute or form part of any offer, or invitation, to subscribe for or to
sell, or solicitation of any offer to subscribe for or to purchase, Certificates or other securities of the
Issuer, nor is it calculated to invite, nor does it permit the making of, offers by the public to subscribe
for or purchase for cash or other consideration the Certificates or other securities of the Issuer.

Restrictions have been imposed on offers and sales of the Certificates and on distributions of
documents relating thereto in Singapore, Hong Kong, the European Economic Area, the United
Kingdom and the United States (see “Placing and Sale” contained herein).

The Certificates are complex products. You should exercise caution in relation to them.
Investors are warned that the price of the Certificates may fall in value as rapidly as it may rise and



holders may sustain a total loss of their investment. The price of the Certificates also depends on the
supply and demand for the Certificates in the market and the price at which the Certificates is trading
at any time may differ from the underlying valuation of the Certificates because of market
inefficiencies. It is not possible to predict the secondary market for the Certificates. Although the
Issuer, the Guarantor and/or any of their affiliates may from time to time purchase the Certificates or
sell additional Certificates on the market, the Issuer, the Guarantor and/or any of their affiliates are not
obliged to do so. Investors should also note that there are leveraged risks because the Certificates
integrate a leverage mechanism and the Certificates will amplify the movements in the increase, and
in the decrease, of the value of the Underlying Stock (as defined below) and if the investment results
in a loss, any such loss will be increased by the leverage factor of the Certificates. As such, investors
could lose more than they would if they had invested directly in the Underlying Stock.

The Certificates are classified as capital markets products other than prescribed capital
markets products1 and Specified Investment Products (SIPs)z, and may only be sold to retail investors
with enhanced safeguards, including an assessment of such investors’ investment knowledge or
experience.

The Certificates constitute general unsecured obligations of the Issuer and of no other
person, and the guarantee dated 21 June 2019 (the “Guarantee”) and entered into by the Guarantor
constitutes general unsecured obligations of the Guarantor and of no other person, and if you
purchase the Certificates, you are relying upon the creditworthiness of the Issuer and the Guarantor
and have no rights under the Certificates against any other person.

Application has been made to the SGX-ST for permission to deal in and for quotation of the
Certificates and the SGX-ST has agreed in principle to grant permission to deal in and for quotation of
the Certificates. It is expected that dealings in the Certificates will commence on or about 3 July 2019.

As of the date hereof, the Guarantor’s long term credit rating by S&P Global Ratings is A, and
by Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. is A1.

The Issuer is regulated by the Luxembourg Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier
on a consolidated basis and the Guarantor is regulated by, inter alia, the Autorité des Marchés
Financiers, the Autorité de Contréle Prudentiel et de Résolution and the European Central Bank.

2 July 2019

' As defined in the Securities and Futures (Capital Markets Products) Regulations 2018.
2 As defined in the MAS Notice SFA 04-N12: Notice on the Sale of Investment Products and MAS Notice FAA-N16: Notice on
Recommendations on Investment Products.



Subject as set out below, the Issuer and the Guarantor accept full responsibility for the
accuracy of the information contained in this document and the Base Listing Document in relation to
themselves and the Certificates. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Issuer and the
Guarantor (each of which has taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case), the
information contained in this document and the Base Listing Document for which they accept
responsibility (subject as set out below in respect of the information contained herein with regard to
the Company) is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of
such information. The information with regard to the Company as set out herein is extracted from
publicly available information. The Issuer and the Guarantor accept responsibility only for the accurate
reproduction of such information. No further or other responsibility or liability in respect of such
information is accepted by the Issuer and the Guarantor.

No person has been authorised to give any information or to make any representation other
than those contained in this document in connection with the offering of the Certificates, and, if given
or made, such information or representations must not be relied upon as having been authorised by
the Issuer or the Guarantor. Neither the delivery of this document nor any sale made hereunder shall
under any circumstances create any implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the
Issuer, the Guarantor or their respective subsidiaries and associates since the date hereof.

This document does not constitute an offer or invitation by or on behalf of the Issuer or the
Guarantor to purchase or subscribe for any of the Certificates. The distribution of this document and
the offering of the Certificates may, in certain jurisdictions, be restricted by law. The Issuer and the
Guarantor require persons into whose possession this document comes to inform themselves of and
observe all such restrictions. In particular, the Certificates and the Guarantee have not been and will
not be registered under the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended or any state securities
law, and trading in the Certificates has not been approved by the United States Commodity Futures
Trading Commission (the “CFTC”) under the United States Commodity Exchange Act of 1936, as
amended and the Issuer will not be registered as an investment company under the United States
Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, and the rules and regulations thereunder. None of the
Securities and Exchange Commission, any state securities commission or regulatory authority or any
other United States, French or other regulatory authority has approved or disapproved of the
Certificates or the Guarantee or passed upon the accuracy or adequacy of this document.
Accordingly, Certificates, or interests therein, may not at any time be offered, sold, resold, traded,
pledged, exercised, redeemed, transferred or delivered, directly or indirectly, in the United States or
to, or for the account or benefit of, U.S. persons, nor may any U.S. person at any time trade, own,
hold or maintain a position in the Certificates or any interests therein. In addition, in the absence of
relief from the CFTC, offers, sales, re-sales, trades, pledges, exercises, redemptions, transfers or
deliveries of Certificates, or interests therein, directly or indirectly, in the United States or to, or for the
account or benefit of, U.S. persons, may constitute a violation of United States law governing
commodities trading and commodity pools. Consequently, any offer, sale, resale, trade, pledge,
exercise, redemption, transfer or delivery made, directly or indirectly, within the United States or to, or
for the account or benefit of, a U.S. person will not be recognised. A further description of certain
restrictions on offering and sale of the Certificates and distribution of this document is given in the
section headed “Placing and Sale” contained herein.

The SGX-ST has made no assessment of, nor taken any responsibility for, the financial
soundness of the Issuer or the Guarantor or the merits of investing in the Certificates, nor have they
verified the accuracy or the truthfulness of statements made or opinions expressed in this document.

The Issuer, the Guarantor and/or any of their affiliates may repurchase Certificates at any
time on or after the date of issue and any Certificates so repurchased may be offered from time to
time in one or more transactions in the over-the-counter market or otherwise at prevailing market



prices or in negotiated transactions, at the discretion of the Issuer, the Guarantor and/or any of their
affiliates. Investors should not therefore make any assumption as to the number of Certificates in
issue at any time.

References in this document to the “Conditions” shall mean references to the Terms and
Conditions of the European Style Cash Settled Long/Short Certificates on Single Equities contained in
the Base Listing Document. Terms not defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed thereto in the
Conditions.
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RISK FACTORS

The following are risk factors relating to the Certificates:

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

(9)

(h)

(i)

investment in Certificates involves substantial risks including market risk, liquidity risk, and the
risk that the Issuer and/or the Guarantor will be unable to satisfy its/their obligations under the
Certificates. Investors should ensure that they understand the nature of all these risks before
making a decision to invest in the Certificates. You should consider carefully whether
Certificates are suitable for you in light of your experience, objectives, financial position and
other relevant circumstances. Certificates are not suitable for inexperienced investors;

the Certificates constitute general unsecured obligations of the Issuer and of no other person,
and the Guarantee constitutes general unsecured obligations of the Guarantor and of no
other person. In particular, it should be noted that the Issuer issues a large number of
financial instruments, including Certificates, on a global basis and, at any given time, the
financial instruments outstanding may be substantial. If you purchase the Certificates, you are
relying upon the creditworthiness of the Issuer and the Guarantor and have no rights under
the Certificates against any other person;

since the Certificates relate to the price of the Underlying Stock, certain events relating to the
Underlying Stock may cause adverse movements in the value and the price of the Underlying
Stock, as a result of which, the Certificate Holders (as defined in the Conditions of the
Certificates) may, in extreme circumstances, sustain a significant loss of their investment if
the price of the Underlying Stock has fallen sharply on the Expiry Date;

due to their nature, the Certificates can be volatile instruments and may be subject to
considerable fluctuations in value. The price of the Certificates may fall in value as rapidly as
it may rise due to, including but not limited to, variations in the frequency and magnitude of
the changes in the price of the Underlying Stock, the time remaining to expiry, the currency
exchange rates and the creditworthiness of the Issuer and the Guarantor;

if, whilst any of the Certificates remain unexercised, trading in the Underlying Stock is
suspended or halted on the relevant stock exchange, trading in the Certificates will be
suspended for a similar period;

as indicated in the Conditions of the Certificates and herein, a Certificate Holder must tender
a specified number of Certificates at any one time in order to exercise. Thus, Certificate
Holders with fewer than the specified minimum number of Certificates in a particular series
will either have to sell their Certificates or purchase additional Certificates, incurring
transactions costs in each case, in order to realise their investment;

investors should note that in the event of there being a Market Disruption Event (as defined in
the Conditions) determination or payment of the Cash Settlement Amount (as defined in the
Conditions) may be delayed, all as more fully described in the Conditions;

certain events relating to the Underlying Stock require or, as the case may be, permit the
Issuer to make certain adjustments or amendments to the Conditions. Investors may refer to
the Conditions 4 and 6 on pages 27 to 31 and the examples and illustrations of adjustments
set out in the “Information relating to the European Style Cash Settled Long Certificates on
Single Equities” section of this document for more information;

the Certificates are only exercisable on the Expiry Date and may not be exercised by
Certificate Holders prior to such Expiry Date. Accordingly, if on the Expiry Date the Cash
Settlement Amount is zero, a Certificate Holder will lose the value of his investment;



)

(k)

()

(m)

(n)

(0)

(P)

the total return on an investment in any Certificate may be affected by the Hedging Fee
Factor (as defined below), Management Fee (as defined below) and Gap Premium (as
defined below);

investors holding their position overnight should note that they would be required to bear the
annualised cost which consists of the Management Fee and Gap Premium, which are
calculated daily and applied to the value of the Certificates, as well as certain costs
embedded within the Leverage Strategy (as described below) including the Funding Cost (as
defined below) and Rebalancing Cost (as defined below);

investors should note that there may be an exchange rate risk relating to the Certificates
where the Cash Settlement Amount is converted from a foreign currency into Singapore
dollars.

Exchange rates between currencies are determined by forces of supply and demand in the
foreign exchange markets. These forces are, in turn, affected by factors such as international
balances of payments and other economic and financial conditions, government intervention
in currency markets and currency trading speculation. Fluctuations in foreign exchange rates,
foreign political and economic developments, and the imposition of exchange controls or
other foreign governmental laws or restrictions applicable to such investments may affect the
foreign currency market price and the exchange rate-adjusted equivalent price of the
Certificates. Fluctuations in the exchange rate of any one currency may be offset by
fluctuations in the exchange rate of other relevant currencies;

investors should note that there are leveraged risks because the Certificates integrate a
leverage mechanism and the Certificates will amplify the movements in the increase, and in
the decrease, of the value of the Underlying Stock and if the investment results in a loss, any
such loss will be increased by the leverage factor of the Certificates. As such, investors could
lose more than they would if they had invested directly in the Underlying Stock;

when held for longer than a day, the performance of the Certificates could be more or less
than the leverage factor that is embedded within the Certificates. The performance of the
Certificates each day is locked in, and any subsequent returns are based on what was
achieved the previous day. This process, referred to as compounding, may lead to a
performance difference from 5 times the performance of the Underlying Stock over a period
longer than one day. This difference may be amplified in a volatile market with a sideway
trend, where market movements are not clear in direction, whereby investors may sustain
substantial losses;

investors should note that the Air Bag Mechanism (as defined below) reduces the impact on
the Leverage Strategy if the Underlying Stock falls further, but will also maintain a reduced
exposure to the Underlying Stock in the event the Underlying Stock starts to rise after the Air
Bag Mechanism is triggered, thereby reducing its ability to recoup losses;

there is no assurance that the Air Bag Mechanism will prevent investors from losing the entire
value of their investment, in the event of (i) an overnight fall in the Underlying Stock, where
there is a 20% or greater gap between the previous day closing price and the opening price of
the Underlying Stock the following day, as the Air Bag Mechanism will only be triggered when
market opens the following day or (ii) a sharp intraday fall in the price of the Underlying Stock
of 20% or greater (comparative to the previous closing price of the Underlying Stock or the
previous observed price in case of an air bag previously on the same day) during the
Observation Period. Investors may refer to pages 46 to 47 of this document for more
information;



(@)

(r)

(s)

(t)

certain events may, pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Certificates, trigger (i) the
implementation of methods of adjustment or (ii) the early termination of the Certificates. The
Issuer will give the investors reasonable notice of any early termination. If the Issuer
terminates the Certificates early, then the Issuer will, if and to the extent permitted by
applicable law, pay an amount to each Certificate Holder in respect of each Certificate held by
such holder equal to the fair market value of the Certificate less the cost to the Issuer of
unwinding any underlying related hedging arrangements, all as determined by the Issuer in its
sole and absolute discretion. The performance of this commitment shall depend on (i) general
market conditions and (ii) the liquidity conditions of the underlying instrument(s) and, as the
case may be, of any other hedging transactions. Investors should note that the amount repaid
by the Issuer may be less than the amount initially invested. Investors may refer to the
Condition 13 on pages 33 to 35 of this document for more information;

there is no assurance that an active trading market for the Certificates will sustain throughout
the life of the Certificates, or if it does sustain, it may be due to market making on the part of
the Designated Market Maker. The Issuer acting through its Designated Market Maker may
be the only market participant buying and selling the Certificates. Therefore, the secondary
market for the Certificates may be limited and you may not be able to realise the value of the
Certificates. Do note that the bid-ask spread increases with illiquidity;

in the ordinary course of their business, including without limitation, in connection with the
Issuer or its appointed designated market maker’s market making activities, the Issuer, the
Guarantor and any of their respective subsidiaries and affiliates may effect transactions for
their own account or for the account of their customers and hold long or short positions in the
Underlying Stock. In addition, in connection with the offering of any Certificates, the Issuer,
the Guarantor and any of their respective subsidiaries and affiliates may enter into one or
more hedging transactions with respect to the Underlying Stock. In connection with such
hedging or market-making activities or with respect to proprietary or other trading activities by
the Issuer, the Guarantor and any of their respective subsidiaries and affiliates, the Issuer, the
Guarantor and any of their respective subsidiaries and affiliates may enter into transactions in
the Underlying Stock which may affect the market price, liquidity or value of the Certificates
and which may affect the interests of Certificate Holders;

various potential and actual conflicts of interest may arise from the overall activities of the
Issuer, the Guarantor and/or any of their subsidiaries and affiliates.

The Issuer, the Guarantor and any of their subsidiaries and affiliates are diversified financial
institutions with relationships in countries around the world. These entities engage in a wide
range of commercial and investment banking, brokerage, funds management, hedging
transactions and investment and other activities for their own account or the account of
others. In addition, the Issuer, the Guarantor and any of their subsidiaries and affiliates, in
connection with their other business activities, may possess or acquire material information
about the Underlying Stock. Such activities and information may involve or otherwise affect
issuers of the Underlying Stock in a manner that may cause consequences adverse to the
Certificate Holders or otherwise create conflicts of interests in connection with the issue of
Certificates by the Issuer. Such actions and conflicts may include, without limitation, the
exercise of voting power, the purchase and sale of securities, financial advisory relationships
and exercise of creditor rights. The Issuer, the Guarantor and any of their subsidiaries and
affiliates have no obligation to disclose such information about the Underlying Stock or such
activities. The Issuer, the Guarantor and any of their subsidiaries and affiliates and their
officers and directors may engage in any such activities without regard to the issue of



(u)

(v)

(w)

(x)

(y)

Certificates by the Issuer or the effect that such activities may directly or indirectly have on
any Certificate;

legal considerations which may restrict the possibility of certain investments:

Some investors’ investment activities are subject to specific laws and regulations or laws and
regulations currently being considered by various authorities. All potential investors must
consult their own legal advisers to check whether and to what extent (i) they can legally
purchase the Certificates (ii) the Certificates can be used as collateral security for various
forms of borrowing (iii) if other restrictions apply to the purchase of Certificates or their use as
collateral security. Financial institutions must consult their legal advisers or regulators to
determine the appropriate treatment of the Certificates under any applicable risk-based
capital or similar rules;

the credit rating of the Guarantor is an assessment of its ability to pay obligations, including
those on the Certificates. Consequently, actual or anticipated declines in the credit rating of
the Guarantor may affect the market value of the Certificates;

the Certificates are linked to the Underlying Stock and subject to the risk that the price of the
Underlying Stock may decline. The following is a list of some of the significant risks
associated with the Underlying Stock:

- Historical performance of the Underlying Stock does not give an indication of future
performance of the Underlying Stock. It is impossible to predict whether the price of
the Underlying Stock will fall or rise over the term of the Certificates; and

- The price of the Underlying Stock may be affected by the economic, financial and
political events in one or more jurisdictions, including the stock exchange(s) or
quotation system(s) on which the Underlying Stock may be traded;

the value of the Certificates depends on the Leverage Strategy performance built in the
Certificate. The Calculation Agent will make the Leverage Strategy last closing level and a
calculation tool available to the investors on a website;

two or more risk factors may simultaneously have an effect on the value of a Certificate such
that the effect of any individual risk factor may not be predicted. No assurance can be given
as to the effect any combination of risk factors may have on the value of a Certificate;

as the Certificates are represented by a global warrant certificate which will be deposited with
The Central Depository (Pte) Limited (“CDP”):

(i) investors should note that no definitive certificate will be issued in relation to the
Certificates;
(ii) there will be no register of Certificate Holders and each person who is for the time

being shown in the records maintained by CDP as entitled to a particular number of
Certificates by way of interest (to the extent of such number) in the global warrant
certificate in respect of those Certificates represented thereby shall be treated as the
holder of such number of Certificates;

(iii) investors will need to rely on any statements received from their brokers/custodians
as evidence of their interest in the Certificates; and

(iv) notices to such Certificate Holders will be published on the web-site of the SGX-ST.
Investors will need to check the web-site of the SGX-ST regularly and/or rely on their
brokers/custodians to obtain such notices;



(aa)

(bb)

(cc)

the US Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act (“FATCA”) withholding risk:

FATCA generally imposes a 30 per cent. withholding tax on certain U.S.-source payments to
certain non-US persons that do provide certification of their compliance with IRS rules to
disclose the identity of their US owners and account holders (if any) or establish a basis for
exemption for such disclosure. The Issuer is subject to FATCA and, as a result, is required to
obtain certification from investors that they have complied with FATCA disclosure
requirements or have established a basis for exemption from FATCA. If an investor does not
provide us with such certification, the Issuer and the Guarantor could be required to withhold
U.S. tax on U.S.-source income (if any) paid pursuant to the Certificates. In certain cases, the
Issuer could be required to close an account of an investor who does not comply with the
FATCA certification procedures.

FATCA IS PARTICULARLY COMPLEX. EACH INVESTOR SHOULD CONSULT ITS OWN
TAX ADVISER TO OBTAIN A MORE DETAILED EXPLANATION OF FATCA AND TO
DETERMINE HOW THIS LEGISLATION MIGHT AFFECT EACH INVESTOR IN ITS
PARTICULAR CIRCUMSTANCES;

U.S. withholding tax

The Issuer has determined that this Certificate is not linked to U.S. Underlying Equities within
the meaning of applicable regulations under Section 871(m) of the United States Internal
Revenue Code, as discussed in the accompanying Base Listing Document under
“TAXATION—TAXATION IN THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA—Section 871(m) of the
U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986.” Accordingly, the Issuer expects that Section 871(m) will
not apply to the Certificates. Such determination is not binding on the IRS, and the IRS may
disagree with this determination. Section 871(m) is complex and its application may depend
on a Certificate Holder's particular circumstances. Certificate Holders should consult with their
own tax advisers regarding the potential application of Section 871(m) to the Certificates; and

risk factors relating to the BRRD

French law and European legislation regarding the resolution of financial institutions may
require the write-down or conversion to equity of the Certificates or other resolution measures
if the Issuer or the Guarantor is deemed to meet the conditions for resolution

Directive 2014/59/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of the European Union
dated 15 May 2014 establishing a framework for the recovery and resolution of credit
institutions and investment firms (the “BRRD”) entered into force on 2 July 2014. As a
directive, the BRRD is not directly applicable in France and had to be transposed into national
legislation. The French ordonnance no. 2015-1024 of 20 August 2015 transposed the BRRD
into French law and amended the French Code monétaire et financier for this purpose. The
French ordonnance has been ratified by law no. 2016-1691 dated 9 December 2016 (Loi
n°2016-1691 du 9 décembre 2016 relative a la transparence, a la lutte contre la corruption et
a la modernisation de la vie économique) which also incorporates provisions which clarify the
implementation of the BRRD. In Luxembourg, the BRRD was implemented by the
Luxembourg act dated 18 December 2015 (the “BRR Act 2015”). Under the BRR Act 2015,
the competent authority is the CSSF and the resolution authority is the CSSF acting as
Resolution Council (le Conseil de résolution).

The stated aim of the BRRD and Regulation (EU) no. 806/2014 of the European Parliament
and of the Council of the European Union of 15 July 2014 (the “SRM Regulation”) is to
provide for the establishment of an EU-wide framework for the recovery and resolution of
credit institutions and investment firms. The regime provided for by the BRRD is, among other
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things, stated to be needed to provide the authority designated by each EU Member State
(the “Resolution Authority”) with a credible set of tools to intervene sufficiently early and
quickly in an unsound or failing institution so as to ensure the continuity of the institution’s
critical financial and economic functions while minimizing the impact of an institution’s failure
on the economy and financial system (including taxpayers’ exposure to losses).

Under the SRM Regulation, a centralized power of resolution is established and entrusted to
the Single Resolution Board (the “SRB”) and to the national resolution authorities.

The powers provided to the Resolution Authority in the BRRD and the SRM Regulation
include write-down/conversion powers to ensure that capital instruments (including
subordinated debt instruments) and eligible liabilities (including senior debt instruments if
junior instruments prove insufficient to absorb all losses) absorb losses of the issuing
institution that is subject to resolution in accordance with a set order of priority (the “Bail-in
Power”).

The conditions for resolution under the French Code monétaire et financier implementing the
BRRD are deemed to be met when: (i) the Resolution Authority or the relevant supervisory
authority determines that the institution is failing or is likely to fail, (ii) there is no reasonable
prospect that any measure other than a resolution measure would prevent the failure within a
reasonable timeframe, and (iii) a resolution measure is necessary for the achievement of the
resolution objectives (in particular, ensuring the continuity of critical functions, avoiding a
significant adverse effect on the financial system, protecting public funds by minimizing
reliance on extraordinary public financial support, and protecting client funds and assets) and
winding up of the institution under normal insolvency proceedings would not meet those
resolution objectives to the same extent.

The Resolution Authority could also, independently of a resolution measure or in combination
with a resolution measure, fully or partially write-down or convert capital instruments
(including subordinated debt instruments) into equity when it determines that the institution or
its group will no longer be viable unless such write down or conversion power is exercised or
when the institution requires extraordinary public financial support (except when extraordinary
public financial support is provided in the form defined in Article L. 613-48 lll, 3° of the French
Code monétaire et financier).

The Bail-in Power could result in the full (i.e., to zero) or partial write-down or conversion into
ordinary shares or other instruments of ownership of the Certificates, or the variation of the
terms of the Certificates (for example, the maturity and/or interest payable may be altered
and/or a temporary suspension of payments may be ordered). Extraordinary public financial
support should only be used as a last resort after having assessed and applied, to the
maximum extent practicable, the resolution measures. No support will be available until a
minimum amount of contribution to loss absorption and recapitalization of 8% of total liabilities
including own funds has been made by shareholders, holders of capital instruments and other
eligible liabilities through write down, conversion or otherwise. In addition, if the Issuer’s or the
Guarantor’s financial condition deteriorates, the existence of the Bail-in Power could cause
the market price or value of the Certificates to decline more rapidly than would be the case in
the absence of such power.

In addition to the Bail-in Power, the BRRD provides the Resolution Authority with broader
powers to implement other resolution measures with respect to institutions that meet the
conditions for resolution, which may include (without limitation) the sale of the institution’s
business, the creation of a bridge institution, the separation of assets, the replacement or
substitution of the institution as obligor in respect of debt instruments, modifications to the

11



terms of debt instruments (including altering the maturity and/or the amount of interest
payable and/or imposing a temporary suspension on payments), removing management,
appointing an interim administrator, and discontinuing the listing and admission to trading of
financial instruments.

Before taking a resolution measure, including implementing the Bail-in Power, or exercising
the power to write down or convert relevant capital instruments, the Resolution Authority must
ensure that a fair, prudent and realistic valuation of the assets and liabilities of the institution
is carried out by a person independent from any public authority.

Since January 1, 2016, French credit institutions (such as the Issuer and the Guarantor) have
to meet, at all times, a minimum requirement for own funds and eligible liabilities (“MREL”)
pursuant to Article L. 613-44 of the French Code monétaire et financier. The MREL, which is
expressed as a percentage of the total liabilities and own funds of the institution, aims at
preventing institutions from structuring their liabilities in a manner that impedes the
effectiveness of the Bail-in Power in order to facilitate resolution.

In addition, on November 9, 2015, the Financial Stability Board (the “FSB”) published a
standard on total loss absorbing capacity (“TLAC”) which is set forth in a term sheet (the
‘FSB TLAC Term Sheet”). That standard —which has been adopted after the BRRD —shares
similar objectives to MREL but covers a different scope. Moreover, the Council of the
European Union published on February 14, 2019 a final compromise text for the modification
of CRR and BRRD intending to give effect to the FSB TLAC Term Sheet and to modify the
requirements for MREL eligibility.

The TLAC requirements are expected to be complied with since January 1, 2019 in
accordance with the FSB principles. The TLAC requirements impose a level of “Minimum
TLAC” that will be determined individually for each global systemically important bank (“G-
SIB”), such as the Issuer and the Guarantor, in an amount at least equal to (i) 16%, plus
applicable buffers, of risk weight assets through January 1, 2022 and 18%, plus applicable
buffers, thereafter and (ii) 6% of the Basel Ill leverage ratio denominator through January 1,
2022 and 6.75% thereafter (each of which could be extended by additional firm-specific
requirements). However, according to the final compromise text for the modification of CRR
published by the Council of the European Union in February 2019, European Union G-SIBs
will have to comply with TLAC requirements, on top of the MREL requirements, as from the
entry into force of the amending regulation. As such, G-SIBs will have to comply at the same
time with TLAC and MREL described above.

In accordance with the provisions of the SRM Regulation, when applicable, the SRB, has
replaced the national resolution authorities designated under the BRRD with respect to all
aspects relating to the decision-making process and the national resolution authorities
designated under the BRRD continue to carry out activities relating to the implementation of
resolution schemes adopted by the SRB. The provisions relating to the cooperation between
the SRB and the national resolution authorities for the preparation of the banks’ resolution
plans have applied since January 1, 2015 and the SRM has been fully operational since
January 1, 2016.

The application of any measure under the French BRRD implementing provisions or any
suggestion of such application with respect to the Issuer, the Guarantor or the Group could
materially adversely affect the rights of Certificate Holders, the price or value of an investment
in the Certificates and/or the ability of the Issuer or the Guarantor to satisfy its obligations
under any Certificates, and as a result investors may lose their entire investment.
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Moreover, if the Issuer’s or the Guarantor’s financial condition deteriorates, the existence of
the Bail-in Power, the exercise of write-down/conversion powers or any other resolution tools
by the Resolution Authority independently of a resolution measure or in combination with a
resolution measure when it determines that the institution or its group will no longer be viable
could cause the market price or value of the Certificates to decline more rapidly than would be
the case in the absence of such powers.

Following the publication on 7 June 2019 in the Official Journal of the EU 14 May 2019 by the
Council of the Directive (EU) 2019/879 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 20
May 2019 amending the BRRD as regards the loss-absorbing and recapitalisation capacity of
credit institutions and investment firms and Directive 98/26/EC and of the Regulation (EU)
2019/877 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 20 May 2019 amending the Single
Resolution Mechanism Regulation (Regulation 806/2014) as regards the loss-absorbing and
recapitalisation capacity of credit institutions and investment firms, a comprehensive
legislative package reducing risks in the banking sector and further reinforcing banks' ability
to withstand potential shocks will strengthen the banking union and reduce risks in the
financial system from 28 December 2020.
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TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE CERTIFICATES

The following are the terms and conditions of the Certificates and should be read in
conjunction with, and are qualified by reference to, the other information set out in this document and

the Base Listing Document.

The Conditions are set out in the section headed “Terms and Conditions of the European
Style Cash Settled Long/Short Certificates on Single Equities” in the Base Listing Document. For the
purposes of the Conditions, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

Certificates:

Company:

Underlying Price® and Source:
Calculation Agent:
Strike Level:

Daily Leverage:

Notional Amount per Certificate:

Management Fee (p.a.)*:

Gap Premium (p.a.)’:

Funding Cost®:

Rebalancing Cost’:

Launch Date:
Closing Date:

Expected Listing Date:

6,700,000 European Style Cash Settled Long Certificates relating to
the ordinary shares of Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company
Limited (the “Underlying Stock”)

Company Limited

Sunny Optical (RIC:

2382.HK)

Technology (Group)

HK$88.2 (Reuters)

Société Générale

Zero

5x (within the Leverage Strategy as described below)
SGD 0.60

0.40%

5.75%, is a hedging cost against extreme market movements
overnight.

The annualised costs of funding, referencing a publically published
interbank offered rate plus spread.

The transaction costs (if applicable), computed as a function of
leverage and daily performance of the Underlying Stock.

25 June 2019
2 July 2019

3 July 2019

® These figures are calculated as at, and based on information available to the Issuer on or about 2 July 2019. The Issuer is not
obliged, and undertakes no responsibility to any person, to update or inform any person of any changes to the figures after 2
July 2019.

*Please note that the Management Fee is calculated on a 360-day basis and may be increased up to a maximum of 3% p.a. on
giving one month’s notice to investors. Any increase in the Management Fee will be announced on the SGXNET. Please refer
to “Fees and Charges” below for further details of the fees and charges payable and the maximum of such fees as well as other
ongoing expenses that may be borne by the Certificates.

® Please note that the Gap Premium is calculated on a 360-day basis.

® These costs are embedded within the Leverage Strategy.
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Last Trading Date:

Expiry Date:

Board Lot:

Valuation Date:

Exercise:

Cash Settlement Amount:

Hedging Fee Factor:

The date falling 5 Business Days immediately preceding the Expiry
Date, currently being 23 June 2022

30 June 2022 (if the Expiry Date is not a Business Day, then the
Expiry Date shall fall on the preceding Business Day and subject to
adjustment of the Valuation Date upon the occurrence of Market
Disruption Events as set out in the Conditions of the Certificates)

100 Certificates

29 June 2022 or if such day is not an Exchange Business Day, the
immediately preceding Exchange Business Day.

The Certificates may only be exercised on the Expiry Date or if the
Expiry Date is not a Business Day, the immediately preceding
Business Day, in a Board Lot or integral multiples thereof. Certificate
Holders shall not be required to deliver an exercise notice. Exercise
of Certificates shall be determined by whether the Cash Settlement
Amount (less any Exercise Expenses) is positive. If the Cash
Settlement Amount (less any Exercise Expenses) is positive, all
Certificates shall be deemed to have been automatically exercised
at 10:00 a.m. (Singapore time) on the Expiry Date or if the Expiry
Date is not a Business Day, the immediately preceding Business
Day. The Cash Settlement Amount less the Exercise Expenses in
respect of the Certificates shall be paid in the manner set out in
Condition 4(c) of the Conditions. In the event the Cash Settlement
Amount (less any Exercise Expenses) is zero, all Certificates shall
be deemed to have expired at 10:00 a.m. (Singapore time) on the
Expiry Date or if the Expiry Date is not a Business Day, the
immediately preceding Business Day, and Certificate Holders shall
not be entitled to receive any payment from the Issuer in respect of
the Certificates.

In respect of each Certificate, shall be an amount payable in the
Settlement Currency equal to:

Closing Level multiplied by the Notional Amount per Certificate

Please refer to the “Information relating to the European Style Cash
Settled Long Certificates on Single Equities” section on pages 38 to
52 of this document for examples and illustrations of the calculation
of the Cash Settlement Amount.

In respect of each Certificate, shall be an amount calculated as:
Product (for t from 1 to Valuation Date) of (1 — Management Fee x
(ACT (t-1;t) = 360)) x (1 — Gap Premium (t-1) x (ACT (t-1;t) = 360)),
where:

“t” refers to “Observation Date” which means each Underlying

Stock Business Day from (and including) the Underlying Stock
Business Day immediately preceding the Expected Listing Date to
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Closing Level:

Initial Reference Level:

Final Reference Level:

Initial Exchange Rate’:

Final Exchange Rate:

Air Bag Mechanism:

the Valuation Date; and
ACT (t-1;t) means the number of calendar days between the

Underlying Stock Business Day immediately preceding the
Observation Date (which is “t-1”) (included) and the Observation
Date (which is “t”) (excluded).

An “Underlying Stock Business Day” is a day on which The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “HKEX”) is open for dealings in
Hong Kong during its normal trading hours and banks are open for
business in Hong Kong.

Please refer to the “Information relating to the European Style Cash
Settled Long Certificates on Single Equities” section on pages 38 to
52 of this document for examples and illustrations of the calculation
of the Hedging Fee Factor.

In respect of each Certificate, shall be an amount payable in the
Settlement Currency equal to:

( Final Reference Level X Final Exchange Rate

- Strike Level) X Hedging Fee Factor

Initial Reference Level XInitial Exchange Rate
1,000

The closing level of the Leverage Strategy (as described below) on
the Valuation Date

The calculation of the closing level of the Leverage Strategy is set
out in the “Specific Definitions relating to the Leverage Strategy”
section on pages 18 to 22 below.

0.1738

The rate for the conversion of HKD to SGD as at 5:00pm (Singapore
Time) on the Valuation Date as shown on Reuters, provided that if
the Reuters service ceases to display such information, as
determined by the Issuer by reference to such source(s) as the
Issuer may reasonably determine to be appropriate at such a time.

The “Air Bag Mechanism” refers to the mechanism built in the
Leverage Strategy and which is designed to reduce the Leverage
Strategy exposure to the Underlying Stock during extreme market
conditions. If the Underlying Stock falls by 15% or more (“Air Bag
Trigger Price”) during the trading day (which represents
approximately 75% loss after a 5 times leverage), the Air Bag
Mechanism is triggered and the Leverage Strategy is adjusted intra-
day. The Air Bag Mechanism reduces the impact on the Leverage
Strategy if the Underlying Stock falls further, but will also maintain a
reduced exposure to the Underlying Stock in the event the
Underlying Stock starts to rise after the Air Bag Mechanism is
triggered, thereby reducing its ability to recoup losses.

Trading of Certificates is suspended for at least 30 minutes after the
Air Bag is triggered.
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Underlying Stock Currency:
Settlement Currency:

Exercise Expenses:

Relevant Stock Exchange for
the Certificates:

Relevant Stock Exchange for
the Underlying Stock:

Business Day and Exchange
Business Day:

Warrant Agent:
Clearing System:

Fees and Charges:

The Leverage Strategy is floored at 0 and the Certificates cannot be
valued below zero.

Please refer to the “Extraordinary Strategy Adjustment for
Performance Reasons (“Air Bag Mechanism”)” section on pages 20
to 22 below and the “Description of Air Bag Mechanism” section on
pages 44 to 45 of this document for further information of the Air Bag
Mechanism.

Hong Kong Dollar (“HKD”)
Singapore Dollar (“SGD”)

Certificate Holders will be required to pay all charges which are
incurred in respect of the exercise of the Certificates.

The Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (“SGX-ST”)

HKEX

A “Business Day” is a day on which the SGX-ST is open for
dealings in Singapore during its normal trading hours and banks are
open for business in Singapore.

An “Exchange Business Day” is a day on which the SGX-ST and
the HKEX are open for dealings in Singapore and Hong Kong
respectively during its normal trading hours and banks are open for
business in Singapore and Hong Kong.

The Central Depository (Pte) Limited (“CDP”)
CDP

Normal transaction and brokerage fees shall apply to the trading of
the Certificates on the SGX-ST. Investors should note that they may
be required to pay stamp taxes or other documentary charges in
accordance with the laws and practices of the country where the
Certificates are transferred. Investors who are in any doubt as to
their tax position should consult their own independent tax advisers.
In addition, investors should be aware that tax regulations and their
application by the relevant taxation authorities change from time to
time. Accordingly, it is not possible to predict the precise tax
treatment which will apply at any given time.

Investors holding position overnight would also be required to bear
the Management Fee and Gap Premium, which are calculated daily
and applied to the value of the Certificates, as well as certain costs
embedded within the Leverage Strategy including the Funding Cost
and Rebalancing Cost. The Management Fee may be increased up
to a maximum of 3% p.a. on giving one month’s notice to investors
in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Certificates. Any
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Further Information:

increase in the Management Fee will be announced on the
SGXNET.

Please refer to the website at dic.socgen.com for more information
on the theoretical closing price of the Certificates on the previous
trading day, the closing price of the Underlying Stock on the
previous trading day, the Air Bag Trigger Price for each trading day
and the Management Fee and Gap Premium.

Specific Definitions relating to the Leverage Strategy

Description of the Leverage Strateqy

The Leverage Strategy is designed to track a 5 times daily leveraged exposure to the Underlying

Stock.

At the end of each trading day of the Underlying Stock, the exposure of the Leverage Strategy to the
Underlying Stock is reset within the Leverage Strategy in order to retain a daily leverage of 5 times the
performance of the Underlying Stock (excluding costs) regardless of the performance of the
Underlying Stock on the preceding day. This mechanism is referred to as the Daily Reset.

The Leverage Strategy incorporates an air bag mechanism which is designed to reduce exposure to
the Underlying Stock during extreme market conditions, as further described below.

Leverage Strateqy Formula

LSL,

LR 1,

FCi_q

means, for any Observation Date(t), the Leverage Strategy Closing Level as
of such day (t).

Subject to the occurrence of an Intraday Restrike Event, the Leverage
Strategy Closing Level as of such Observation Date(t) is calculated in
accordance with the following formulae:

On Observation Date(1):
LSL, = 1000

On each subsequent Observation Date(t):
LSL; = Max|LSL;_; X (1 4+ LRy_y; — FC_1c — RCi_1,),0]

means the Leveraged Return of the Underlying Stock between Observation
Date(t-1) and Observation Date(t) closing prices, calculated as follows:

_ St
LR;_; = Leverage X <W - 1)

means, the Funding Cost between Observation Date(t-1) (included) and

Observation Date(t) (excluded) calculated as follows :

Rate,_; X ACT(t—1,t)
DayCountBasisRate

FCi_,: = (Leverage — 1) X
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RC;_1; means the Rebalancing Cost of the Leverage Strategy on Observation Date
(t), calculated as follows :

S
RCi_;+ = Leverage X (Leverage — 1) X ( St_lxR—;acwrt - 1|) X TC
TC means the Transaction Costs applicable (including Stamp Duty) that are
equal to :
0.10%
Leverage 5
S; means, in respect of each Observation Date(t), the Closing Price of the

Underlying Stock as of such Observation Date(t), subject to the adjustments
and provisions of the Conditions.

Rate, means, in respect of each Observation Date(t), a rate calculated as of such
day in accordance with the following formula:
Rate; = CashRate; + %SpreadLevel;

Rfactor; means, in the event Observation Date (t) is an ex-dividend date of the
Underlying Stock, an amount determined by the Calculation Agent, subject
to the adjustments and provisions of the Conditions, according to the
following formula :

Div,

Si-1

Rfactor, = 1 —

where

Div, is the dividend to be paid out in respect of the Underlying Stock and the
relevant ex-dividend date which shall be considered net of any applicable
withholding taxes.

CashRate, means, in respect of each Observation Date(t), the Overnight HKD Hong
Kong Interbank Offered Rate (HIBOR) Fixing, as published on Reuters RIC
HIHKDOND-= or any successor page.

%SpreadLevel, means, in respect of each Observation Date(t), a rate which shall be
determined with respect to such Valuation Date(t) by the Calculation Agent
as the difference between (1) the 12-month HKD Hong Kong Interbank
Offered Rate (HIBOR) Fixing, as published on Reuters RIC HIHKD1YD= and
(2) Overnight HKD Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (HIBOR) Fixing, as
published on Reuters RIC HIHKDOND= or any successor page.

Provided that if such difference is negative, %SpreadLevel, should be 0%.
ACT(t-1,t) ACT (t-1;t) means the number of calendar days between the Underlying
Stock Business Day immediately preceding the Observation Date (which is

“t-1”) (included) and the Observation Date (which is “t”) (excluded).

DayCountBasisRate 365
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Extraordinary Strateqy Adjustment for Performance Reasons (“Air Bag Mechanism?”)

Extraordinary Strategy
Adjustment for
Performance Reasons

ILSLyg o

ILRr(k-1),IR(K)

IRCir(ic-1),Ir(K)

ISira)

If the Calculation Agent determines that an Intraday Restrike Event has
occurred during an Observation Date(t) (the Intraday Restrike Date, noted
hereafter IRD), an adjustment (an Extraordinary Strategy Adjustment for
Performance Reasons) shall take place during such Observation Date(t) in
accordance with the following provisions.

(1) Provided the last Intraday Restrike Observation Period as of such Intraday
Restrike Date does not end on the TimeReferenceClosing, the Leverage
Strategy Closing Level on the Intraday Restrike Date (LSL;zp) should be
computed as follows :

LSLIRD = MaX[ILSLIR(n) X (1 + ILRIR(H),IR(C) - IRCIR(n),IR(C))’ 0]

(2) If the last Intraday Restrike Event Observation Period on the relevant
Intraday Restrike Date ends on the TimeReferenceClosing:

LSLigp = Max|ILSLgcny, 0]

means, in respect of IR(k), the Intraday Leverage Strategy Level in
accordance with the following provisions :

(1) fork=1:
ILSLig1y = Max[LSLigp—1 X (1 + ILRir¢oy1r1) — FCrro-1,r0 — IRCir(o)ir1y ) 0]

(2) fork>1:
ILSLirgey = Max[ILSLige—1) X (1 + ILRiRae—1)1rk) = IRCiraem1),1R(l0) ) 0]

means the Intraday Leveraged Return between IR(k-1) and IR(k), calculated
as follows :

IS1R(K
ILR{rk-1),1r() = Leverage X (ﬁ _ 1)

means the Intraday Rebalancing Cost of the Leverage Strategy in respect of
IR(k) on a given Intraday Restrike Date, calculated as follows :
> X TC

means the Underlying Stock Price in respect of IR(k) computed as follows :
(1) for k=0
ISir(0) = Sirp-1 X Rfactorigp

| ISir@)

-1
|ISIR(k_1) X Rfactor,

IRCig(k-1),r(k) = Leverage X (Leverage — 1) X <

(2) fork=1ton
means in respect of IR(k), the lowest price of the Underlying Stock during the
respective Intraday Restrike Observation Period

(3) with respect to IR(C)
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IR(K)

IR(C)

Intraday Restrike Event

Calculation Time

TimeReferenceOpening

TimeReferenceClosing

Intraday Restrike Event
Observation Period

ISIR(C) = Sirp
In each case, subject to the adjustments and provisions of the Conditions.

For k=0, means the scheduled close for the Relevant Stock Exchange for the
Underlying Stock (or any successor thereto) on the Observation Date
immediately preceding the relevant Intraday Restrike Date;

For k=1 to n, means the k" Intraday Restrike Event on the relevant Intraday
Restrike Date.

means the scheduled close for the Relevant Stock Exchange for the
Underlying Stock (or any successor thereto) on the relevant Intraday Restrike
Date.

means the number of Intraday Restrike Events that occurred on the relevant
Intraday Restrike Date.

means in respect of an Observation Date(t):

(1) provided no Intraday Restrike Event has previously occurred on such
Observation Date (t), the decrease at any Calculation Time of the Underlying
Stock price by 15% or more compared with the relevant Underlying Stock
Price IS (o) as of such Calculation Time.

(2) if k Intraday Restrike Events have occurred on the relevant Intraday
Restrike Date, the decrease at any Calculation Time of the Underlying Stock
price by 15% or more compared with the relevant Underlying Stock Price
IS|r() @s of such Calculation Time.

means any time between the TimeReferenceOpening and the
TimeReferenceClosing, provided that the relevant data is available to enable
the Calculation Agent to determine the Leverage Strategy Level.

means the scheduled opening time for the Relevant Stock Exchange for the
Underlying Stock (or any successor thereto).

means the scheduled closing time for the Relevant Stock Exchange for the
Underlying Stock (or any successor thereto).

means in respect of an Intraday Restrike Event, the period starting on and
excluding the Intraday Restrike Event Time and finishing on and including the
sooner between (1) the time falling 15 minutes after the Intraday Restrike
Event Time and (2) the TimeReferenceClosing.

Where, during such period, the Calculation Agent determines that (1) the
trading in the Underlying Stock is disrupted or subject to suspension or
limitation or (2) the Relevant Stock Exchange for the Underlying Stock is not
open for continuous trading, the Intraday Restrike Event Observation Period
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will be extended to the extent necessary until (1) the trading in the Underlying
Stock is no longer disrupted, suspended or limited and (2) the Relevant Stock
Exchange for the Underlying Stock is open for continuous trading.

Intraday Restrike Event means in respect of an Intraday Restrike Event, the Calculation Time on which
Time such event occurs.
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The Conditions set out in the section headed “Terms and Conditions of the European Style Cash
Settled Long/Short Certificates on Single Equities” in the Base Listing Document are set out below.
This section is qualified in its entirety by reference to the detailed information appearing elsewhere in
this document which shall, to the extent so specified or to the extent inconsistent with the relevant
Conditions set out below, replace or modify the relevant Conditions for the purpose of the Certificates.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF

THE EUROPEAN STYLE CASH SETTLED LONG/SHORT CERTIFICATES ON SINGLE EQUITIES

1. Form, Status and Guarantee, Transfer and Title

(@)

(b)

Form. The Certificates (which expression shall, unless the context otherwise requires,
include any further certificates issued pursuant to Condition 11) are issued subject to
and with the benefit of:-

(i) a master instrument by way of deed poll (the “Master Instrument”’) dated 21 June
2019, made by SG Issuer (the “Issuer”) and Société Générale (the “Guarantor”);
and

(i) a warrant agent agreement (the “Master Warrant Agent Agreement’ or
“Warrant Agent Agreement”) dated any time before or on the Closing Date, made
between the Issuer and the Warrant Agent for the Certificates.

Copies of the Master Instrument and the Master Warrant Agent Agreement or Warrant
Agent Agreement are available for inspection at the specified office of the Warrant
Agent.

The holders of the Certificates (the “Certificate Holders”) are entitled to the benefit of,
are bound by and are deemed to have notice of all the provisions of the Master
Instrument and the Master Warrant Agent Agreement or Warrant Agent Agreement.

Status and Guarantee. The Certificates constitute direct, general and unsecured
obligations of the Issuer and rank, and will rank, equally among themselves and pari
passu with all other present and future unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of
the Issuer (save for statutorily preferred exceptions). The Certificates provide for cash
settlement on exercise. The Certificates do not entitle Certificate Holders to the delivery
of any Underlying Stock, are not secured by the Underlying Stock and do not entitle
Certificate Holders to any interest in any Underlying Stock.

The due and punctual payment of any amounts due by the Issuer in respect of the
Certificates issued by the Issuer is unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by the
Guarantor as provided in the Guarantee (each such amount payable under the
Guarantee, a “Guarantee Obligation”).

The Guarantee Obligations will constitute direct, unconditional, unsecured and
unsubordinated obligations of the Guarantor ranking as senior preferred obligations as
provided for in Article L. 613-30-3 | 3° of the French Code Monétaire et Financier (the
“Code”).

Such Guarantee Obligations rank and will rank equally and rateably without any
preference or priority among themselves and:

(i) pari passu with all other direct, unconditional, unsecured and unsubordinated
obligations of the Guarantor outstanding as of the date of the entry into force of the
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(c)

(d)

(e)

law no. 2016-1691 (the “Law”) on 11 December 2016;

(i) pari passu with all other present or future direct, unconditional, unsecured and
senior preferred obligations (as provided for in Article L. 613-30-3 | 3° of the Code)
of the Guarantor issued after the date of the entry into force of the Law on 11
December 2016;

(iii) junior to all present or future claims of the Guarantor benefiting from the statutorily
preferred exceptions; and

(iv) senior to all present and future senior non-preferred obligations (as provided for in
Article L.613-30-3 | 4° of the Code) of the Guarantor.

In the event of the failure of the Issuer to promptly perform its obligations to any
Certificate Holder under the terms of the Certificates, such Certificate Holder may, but
is not obliged to, give written notice to the Guarantor at Société Générale, Tour Société
Générale, 75886 Paris Cedex 18, France marked for the attention of SEGL/JUR/OMF -
Market Transactions & Financing.

Transfer. The Certificates are represented by a global warrant certificate (“Global
Warrant”) which will be deposited with The Central Depository (Pte) Limited (“CDP”).
Certificates in definitive form will not be issued. Transfers of Certificates may be
effected only in Board Lots or integral multiples thereof. All transactions in (including
transfers of) Certificates, in the open market or otherwise, must be effected through a
securities account with CDP. Title will pass upon registration of the transfer in the
records maintained by CDP.

Title. Each person who is for the time being shown in the records maintained by CDP
as entitled to a particular number of Certificates shall be treated by the Issuer, the
Guarantor and the Warrant Agent as the holder and absolute owner of such number of
Certificates, notwithstanding any notice to the contrary. The expression “Certificate
Holder” shall be construed accordingly.

Bail-In. By the acquisition of Certificates, each Certificate Holder (which, for the
purposes of this Condition, includes any current or future holder of a beneficial interest
in the Certificates) acknowledges, accepts, consents and agrees:

(i) to be bound by the effect of the exercise of the Bail-In Power (as defined below) by
the Relevant Resolution Authority (as defined below) or the Regulator (as defined
below), which may include and result in any of the following, or some combination
thereof:

(A) the reduction of all, or a portion, of the Amounts Due (as defined below), on a
permanent basis;

(B) the conversion of all, or a portion, of the Amounts Due into shares, other
securities or other obligations of the Issuer or another person (and the issue
to the Certificate Holder of such shares, securities or obligations), including
by means of an amendment, modification or variation of the Conditions of the
Certificates, in which case the Certificate Holder agrees to accept in lieu of its
rights under the Certificates any such shares, other securities or other
obligations of the Issuer or another person;

(C) the cancellation of the Certificates; and/or

(D) the amendment or alteration of the expiration of the Certificates or
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amendment of the amounts payable on the Certificates, or the date on which
the amounts become payable, including by suspending payment for a
temporary period; and

(i) that the terms of the Certificates are subject to, and may be varied, if necessary, to
give effect to, the exercise of the Bail-lIn Power by the Relevant Resolution
Authority or the Regulator.

“‘“Amounts Due” means any amounts due by the Issuer under the Certificates.

‘Bail-In Power” means any power existing from time to time under any laws,
regulations, rules or requirements in effect in France, relating to the transposition of
Directive 2014/59/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of 15 May 2014
establishing a framework for the recovery and resolution of credit institutions and
investment firms (as amended from time to time, the “BRRD”), including without
limitation pursuant to French decree-law No. 2015-1024 dated 20 August 2015
(Ordonnance portant diverses dispositions d'adaptation de la Iégislation au droit de
I'Union européenne en matiére financiere) (as amended from time to time, the “20
August 2015 Decree Law”), Regulation (EU) No 806/2014 of the European Parliament
and of the Council of 15 July 2014 establishing uniform rules and a uniform procedure
for the resolution of credit institutions and certain investment firms in the framework of a
Single Resolution Mechanism and a Single Resolution Fund and amending Regulation
(EU) No 1093/2010 (as amended from time to time, the “Single Resolution
Mechanism Regulation”), or otherwise arising under French law, and in each case the
instructions, rules and standards created thereunder, pursuant to which the obligations
of a Regulated Entity (or an affiliate of such Regulated Entity) can be reduced (in part
or in whole), cancelled, suspended, transferred, varied or otherwise modified in any
way, or securities of a Regulated Entity (or an affiliate of such Regulated Entity) can be
converted into shares, other securities, or other obligations of such Regulated Entity or
any other person, whether in connection with the implementation of a bail-in tool
following placement in resolution or otherwise.

“‘Regulated Entity” means any entity referred to in Section | of Article L.613-34 of the
French Code monétaire et financier as modified by the 20 August 2015 Decree Law,
which includes certain credit institutions, investment firms, and certain of their parent or
holding companies established in France.

“‘Relevant Resolution Authority” means the Autorité de contréle prudentiel et de
résolution (the ACPR), the Single Resolution Board established pursuant to the Single
Resolution Mechanism Regulation, and/or any other authority entitled to exercise or
participate in the exercise of any Bail-in Power from time to time (including the Council
of the European Union and the European Commission when acting pursuant to Article
18 of the Single Resolution Mechanism Regulation).

“‘Regulator’ means the European Central Bank and any successor or replacement
thereto, or other authority having primary responsibility for the prudential oversight and
supervision of the Issuer.

No repayment or payment of the Amounts Due will become due and payable or be paid
after the exercise of the Bail-in Power by the Relevant Resolution Authority or the
Regulator with respect to the Issuer unless, at the time such repayment or payment,
respectively, is scheduled to become due, such repayment or payment would be
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permitted to be made by the Issuer under the laws and regulations in effect in France
and the European Union applicable to the Issuer or other members of its group.

Upon the exercise of any Bail-in Power by the Relevant Resolution Authority or the
Regulator with respect to the Certificates, the Issuer will provide a written notice to the
Certificate Holders in accordance with Condition 9 as soon as practicable regarding
such exercise of the Bail-in Power. Any delay or failure by the Issuer to give notice shall
not affect the validity and enforceability of the Bail-in Power nor the effects on the
Certificates described above.

Neither a cancellation of the Certificates, a reduction, in part or in full, of the Amounts
Due, the conversion thereof into another security or obligation of the Issuer or another
person, as a result of the exercise of the Bail-in Power by the Relevant Resolution
Authority or the Regulator with respect to the Issuer, nor the exercise of any Bail-in
Power by the Relevant Resolution Authority or the Regulator with respect to the
Certificates will be an event of default or otherwise constitute non-performance of a
contractual obligation, or entitle the Certificate Holder to any remedies (including
equitable remedies) which are hereby expressly waived.

If the Relevant Resolution Authority or the Regulator exercises the Bail-in Power with
respect to less than the total Amounts Due, unless otherwise instructed by the Issuer or
the Relevant Resolution Authority or the Regulator, any cancellation, write-off or
conversion made in respect of the Certificates pursuant to the Bail-in Power will be
made on a pro-rata basis.

The matters set forth in this Condition shall be exhaustive on the foregoing matters to
the exclusion of any other agreements, arrangements or understandings between the
Issuer and each Certificate Holder. No expenses necessary for the procedures under
this Condition, including, but not limited to, those incurred by the Issuer, shall be borne
by any Certificate Holder.

2. Certificate Rights and Exercise Expenses

(@)

Certificate Rights. Every Certificate entitles each Certificate Holder, upon due exercise
and on compliance with Condition 4, to payment by the Issuer of the Cash Settlement
Amount (as defined below) (if any) in the manner set out in Condition 4.

The “Cash Settlement Amount”, in respect of each Certificate, shall be an amount
payable in the Settlement Currency equal to the Closing Level multiplied by the
Notional Amount per Certificate.

The “Closing Level”, in respect of each Certificate, shall be an amount payable in the
Settlement Currency equal to:

Final Reference Level XFinal Exchange Rate
( - Strike Level) XHedging Fee Factor

Initial Reference Level XInitial Exchange Rate
If the Issuer determines, in its sole discretion, that on the Valuation Date a Market
Disruption Event has occurred, then that Valuation Date shall be postponed until the
first succeeding Exchange Business Day on which there is no Market Disruption Event,
unless there is a Market Disruption Event on each of the five Exchange Business Days
immediately following the original date that, but for the Market Disruption Event, would
have been a Valuation Date. In that case:-

(i) that fifth Exchange Business Day shall be deemed to be the Valuation Date
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(b)

(c)

notwithstanding the Market Disruption Event; and

(i) the Issuer shall determine the Final Reference Level on the basis of its good
faith estimate of the Final Reference Level that would have prevailed on that fifth
Exchange Business Day but for the Market Disruption Event.

“Market Disruption Event" means the occurrence or existence on the Valuation Date

of (i) any suspension of trading on the Relevant Stock Exchange of the Underlying
Stock requested by the Company if that suspension is, in the determination of the
Issuer, material, (ii) any suspension of or limitation imposed on trading (including but
not limited to unforeseen circumstances such as by reason of movements in price
exceeding limits permitted by the Relevant Stock Exchange or any act of God, war, riot,
public disorder, explosion, terrorism or otherwise) on the Relevant Stock Exchange in
the Underlying Stock if that suspension or limitation is, in the determination of the
Issuer, material, or (iii) the closing of the Relevant Stock Exchange or a disruption to
trading on the Relevant Stock Exchange if that disruption is, in the determination of the
Issuer, material as a result of the occurrence of any act of God, war, riot, public
disorder, explosion or terrorism.

Exercise Expenses. Certificate Holders will be required to pay all charges which are
incurred in respect of the exercise of the Certificates (the “Exercise Expenses”). An
amount equivalent to the Exercise Expenses will be deducted by the Issuer from the
Cash Settlement Amount in accordance with Condition 4. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, the Certificate Holders shall account to the Issuer on demand for any
Exercise Expenses to the extent that they were not or could not be deducted from the
Cash Settlement Amount prior to the date of payment of the Cash Settlement Amount
to the Certificate Holders in accordance with Condition 4.

No Rights. The purchase of Certificates does not confer on the Certificate Holders any
right (whether in respect of voting, dividend or other distributions in respect of the
Underlying Stock or otherwise) which the holder of an Underlying Stock may have.

3. Expiry Date

Unless automatically exercised in accordance with Condition 4(b), the Certificates shall be
deemed to expire at 10:00 a.m. (Singapore time) on the Expiry Date or if the Expiry Date is not a
Business Day (as defined below), the immediately preceding Business Day.

4, Exercise of Certificates

(@)

Exercise. Certificates may only be exercised on the Expiry Date or if the Expiry Date is
not a Business Day, the immediately preceding Business Day, in accordance with
Condition 4(b).

Automatic Exercise. Certificate Holders shall not be required to deliver an exercise
notice. Exercise of Certificates shall be determined by whether the Cash Settlement
Amount (less any Exercise Expenses) is positive. If the Cash Settlement Amount (less
any Exercise Expenses) is positive, all Certificates shall be deemed to have been
automatically exercised at 10:00 a.m. (Singapore time) on the Expiry Date or if the
Expiry Date is not a Business Day, the immediately preceding Business Day. The Cash
Settlement Amount less the Exercise Expenses in respect of the Certificates shall be
paid in the manner set out in Condition 4(c) below. In the event the Cash Settlement
Amount (less any Exercise Expenses) is zero, all Certificates shall be deemed to have
expired at 10:00 a.m. (Singapore time) on the Expiry Date or if the Expiry Date is not a
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(c)

(d)

(e)

Business Day, the immediately preceding Business Day, and Certificate Holders shall
not be entitled to receive any payment from the Issuer in respect of the Certificates.

Settlement. In respect of Certificates which are automatically exercised in accordance
with Condition 4(b), the Issuer will pay to the relevant Certificate Holder the Cash
Settlement Amount (if any) in the Settlement Currency. The aggregate Cash Settlement
Amount (less any Exercise Expenses) shall be despatched as soon as practicable and
no later than five Business Days following the Expiry Date by way of crossed cheque or
other payment in immediately available funds drawn in favour of the Certificate Holder
only (or, in the case of joint Certificate Holders, the first-named Certificate Holder)
appearing in the records maintained by CDP. Any payment made pursuant to this
Condition 4(c) shall be delivered at the risk and expense of the Certificate Holder and
posted to the Certificate Holder’'s address appearing in the records maintained by CDP
(or, in the case of joint Certificate Holders, to the address of the first-named Certificate
Holder appearing in the records maintained by CDP). If the Cash Settlement Amount is
equal to or less than the determined Exercise Expenses, no amount is payable.

CDP not liable. CDP shall not be liable to any Certificate Holder with respect to any
action taken or omitted to be taken by the Issuer or the Warrant Agent in connection
with the exercise of the Certificates or otherwise pursuant to or in connection with these
Conditions.

Business Day. In these Conditions, a “Business Day” shall be a day on which the
SGX-ST is open for dealings in Singapore during its normal trading hours and banks
are open for business in Singapore.

Warrant Agent

(@)

Warrant Agent. The Issuer reserves the right, subject to the appointment of a
successor, at any time to vary or terminate the appointment of the Warrant Agent and
to appoint another Warrant Agent provided that it will at all times maintain a Warrant
Agent which, so long as the Certificates are listed on the SGX-ST, shall be in
Singapore. Notice of any such termination or appointment and of any change in the
specified office of the Warrant Agent will be given to the Certificate Holders in
accordance with Condition 9.

Agent of Issuer. The Warrant Agent will be acting as agent of the Issuer and will not
assume any obligation or duty to or any relationship of agency or trust for the Certificate
Holders. All determinations and calculations by the Warrant Agent under these
Conditions shall (save in the case of manifest error) be final and binding on the Issuer
and the Certificate Holders.

Adjustments

(@)

Potential Adjustment Event. Following the declaration by a Company of the terms of
any Potential Adjustment Event (as defined below), the Issuer will determine whether
such Potential Adjustment Event has a dilutive or concentrative or other effect on the
theoretical value of the Underlying Stock and, if so, will (i) make the corresponding
adjustment, if any, to any one or more of the Conditions as the Issuer determines
appropriate to account for that dilutive or concentrative or other effect, and (ii)
determine the effective date of that adjustment. The Issuer may, but need not,
determine the appropriate adjustment by reference to the adjustment in respect of
such Potential Adjustment Event made by an exchange on which options or futures
contracts on the Underlying Stock are traded.
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(b)

(c)

Definitions. “Potential Adjustment Event” means any of the following:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)
(iv)
v)

(vi)

(vii)

a subdivision, consolidation, reclassification or other restructuring of the
Underlying Stock (excluding a Merger Event) or a free distribution or dividend
of any such Underlying Stock to existing holders by way of bonus,
capitalisation or similar issue;

a distribution or dividend to existing holders of the Underlying Stock of (1)
such Underlying Stock, or (2) other share capital or securities granting the
right to payment of dividends and/or the proceeds of liquidation of the
Company equally or proportionately with such payments to holders of such
Underlying Stock, or (3) share capital or other securities of another issuer
acquired by the Company as a result of a “spin-off’ or other similar
transaction, or (4) any other type of securities, rights or warrants or other
assets, in any case for payment (in cash or otherwise) at less than the
prevailing market price as determined by the Issuer;

an extraordinary dividend,;
a call by the Company in respect of the Underlying Stock that is not fully paid;

a repurchase by the Company of the Underlying Stock whether out of profits
or capital and whether the consideration for such repurchase is cash,
securities or otherwise;

with respect to a Company an event that results in any shareholder rights
pursuant to a shareholder rights agreement or other plan or arrangement of
the type commonly referred to as a “poison pill” being distributed, or
becoming separated from shares of common stock or other shares of the
capital stock of such Company (provided that any adjustment effected as a
result of such an event shall be readjusted upon any redemption of such
rights); or

any other event that may have, in the opinion of the Issuer, a dilutive or
concentrative or other effect on the theoretical value of the Underlying Stock.

Merger Event, Tender Offer, Nationalisation and Insolvency. If a Merger Event,
Tender Offer, Nationalisation or Insolvency occurs in relation to the Underlying Stock,
the Issuer may take any action described below:

(i)

(ii)

determine the appropriate adjustment, if any, to be made to any one or more
of the Conditions to account for the Merger Event, Tender Offer,
Nationalisation or Insolvency, as the case may be, and determine the
effective date of that adjustment. The Issuer may, but need not, determine
the appropriate adjustment by reference to the adjustment in respect of the
Merger Event, Tender Offer, Nationalisation or Insolvency made by an
options exchange to options on the Underlying Stock traded on that options
exchange;

cancel the Certificates by giving notice to the Certificate Holders in
accordance with Condition 9. If the Certificates are so cancelled, the Issuer
will pay an amount to each Certificate Holder in respect of each Certificate
held by such Certificate Holder which amount shall be the fair market value of
a Certificate taking into account the Merger Event, Tender Offer,
Nationalisation or Insolvency, as the case may be, less the cost to the Issuer
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(d)

and/or any of its affiliates of unwinding any underlying related hedging
arrangements, all as determined by the Issuer in its reasonable discretion.
Payment will be made in such manner as shall be notified to the Certificate
Holders in accordance with Condition 9; or

(iii) following any adjustment to the settlement terms of options on the Underlying
Stock on such exchange(s) or trading system(s) or quotation system(s) as
the Issuer in its reasonable discretion shall select (the “Option Reference
Source”) make a corresponding adjustment to any one or more of the
Conditions, which adjustment will be effective as of the date determined by
the Issuer to be the effective date of the corresponding adjustment made by
the Option Reference Source. If options on the Underlying Stock are not
traded on the Option Reference Source, the Issuer will make such
adjustment, if any, to any one or more of the Conditions as the Issuer
determines appropriate, with reference to the rules and precedents (if any)
set by the Option Reference Source, to account for the Merger Event, Tender
Offer, Nationalisation or Insolvency, as the case may be, that in the
determination of the Issuer would have given rise to an adjustment by the
Option Reference Source if such options were so traded.

Once the Issuer determines that its proposed course of action in connection with a
Merger Event, Tender Offer, Nationalisation or Insolvency, it shall give notice to the
Certificate Holders in accordance with Condition 9 stating the occurrence of the
Merger Event, Tender Offer, Nationalisation or Insolvency, as the case may be, giving
details thereof and the action proposed to be taken in relation thereto. Certificate
Holders should be aware that due to the nature of such events, the Issuer will not
make an immediate determination of its proposed course of action or adjustment
upon the announcement or occurrence of a Merger Event, Tender Offer,
Nationalisation or Insolvency.

Definitions. “Insolvency” means that by reason of the voluntary or involuntary
liquidation, bankruptcy, insolvency, dissolution or winding-up of or any analogous
proceeding affecting a Company (i) all the Underlying Stock of that Company is
required to be transferred to a trustee, liquidator or other similar official or (ii) holders
of the Underlying Stock of that Company become legally prohibited from transferring
them. “Merger Date” means the closing date of a Merger Event or, where a closing
date cannot be determined under the local law applicable to such Merger Event, such
other date as determined by the Issuer. “Merger Event” means, in respect of the
Underlying Stock, any (i) reclassification or change of such Underlying Stock that
results in a transfer of or an irrevocable commitment to transfer all of such Underlying
Stock outstanding to another entity or person, (ii) consolidation, amalgamation,
merger or binding share exchange of a Company with or into another entity or person
(other than a consolidation, amalgamation, merger or binding share exchange in
which such Company is the continuing entity and which does not result in
reclassification or change of all of such Underlying Stock outstanding), (iii) takeover
offer, exchange offer, solicitation, proposal or other event by any entity or person to
purchase or otherwise obtain 100 per cent. of the outstanding Underlying Stock of the
Company that results in a transfer of or an irrevocable commitment to transfer all
such Underlying Stock (other than such Underlying Stock owned or controlled by
such other entity or person), or (iv) consolidation, amalgamation, merger or binding
share exchange of the Company or its subsidiaries with or into another entity in which
the Company is the continuing entity and which does not result in a reclassification or
change of all such Underlying Stock outstanding but results in the outstanding
Underlying Stock (other than Underlying Stock owned or controlled by such other
entity) immediately prior to such event collectively representing less than 50 per cent.
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(f)

of the outstanding Underlying Stock immediately following such event, in each case if
the Merger Date is on or before the Valuation Date. “Nationalisation” means that all
the Underlying Stock or all or substantially all of the assets of a Company are
nationalised, expropriated or are otherwise required to be transferred to any
governmental agency, authority, entity or instrumentality thereof. “Tender Offer’
means a takeover offer, tender offer, exchange offer, solicitation, proposal or other
event by any entity or person that results in such entity or person purchasing, or
otherwise obtaining or having the right to obtain, by conversion or other means,
greater than 10 per cent. and less than 100 per cent. of the outstanding voting shares
of the Company, as determined by the Issuer, based upon the making of filings with
governmental or self-regulatory agencies or such other information as the Issuer
deems relevant.

Other Adjustments. Except as provided in this Condition 6 and Conditions 10 and 12,
adjustments will not be made in any other circumstances, subject to the right
reserved by the Issuer (such right to be exercised in the Issuer's sole discretion and
without any obligation whatsoever) to make such adjustments and amendments as it
believes appropriate in circumstances where an event or events occur which it
believes in its sole discretion (and notwithstanding any prior adjustment made
pursuant to the above) should, in the context of the issue of the Certificates and the
obligations of the Issuer, give rise to such adjustment or, as the case may be,
amendment provided that such adjustment or, as the case may be, amendment is
considered by the Issuer not to be materially prejudicial to the Certificate Holders
generally (without considering the circumstances of any individual Certificate Holder
or the tax or other consequences of such adjustment or amendment in any particular
jurisdiction).

Notice of Adjustments. All determinations made by the Issuer pursuant hereto will be
conclusive and binding on the Certificate Holders. The Issuer will give, or procure
that there is given, notice as soon as practicable of any adjustment and of the date
from which such adjustment is effective by publication in accordance with Condition
9.

7. Purchases

The Issuer, the Guarantor or any of their respective subsidiaries may at any time purchase
Certificates at any price in the open market or by tender or by private treaty. Any Certificates so
purchased may be held or resold or surrendered for cancellation.

8. Meetings of Certificate Holders; Modification

(@)

Meetings of Cetrtificate Holders. The Master Warrant Agent Agreement or Warrant
Agent Agreement contains provisions for convening meetings of the Certificate Holders
to consider any matter affecting their interests, including the sanctioning by
Extraordinary Resolution (as defined in the Master Warrant Agent Agreement or
Warrant Agent Agreement) of a modification of the provisions of the Certificates or of
the Master Warrant Agent Agreement or Warrant Agent Agreement.

At least 21 days’ notice (exclusive of the day on which the notice is given and of the
day on which the meeting is held) specifying the date, time and place of the meeting
shall be given to the Certificate Holders.

Such a meeting may be convened by the Issuer or by Certificate Holders holding not
less than ten per cent. of the Certificates for the time being remaining unexercised. The
quorum at any such meeting for passing an Extraordinary Resolution will be two or
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more persons holding or representing not less than 25 per cent. of the Certificates for
the time being remaining unexercised, or at any adjourned meeting, two or more
persons being or representing Certificate Holders whatever the number of Certificates
so held or represented.

A resolution will be an Extraordinary Resolution when it has been passed at a duly
convened meeting by not less than three-quarters of the votes cast by such Certificate
Holders who, being entitled to do so, vote in person or by proxy.

An Extraordinary Resolution passed at any meeting of the Certificate Holders shall be
binding on all the Certificate Holders whether or not they are present at the meeting.
Resolutions can be passed in writing if passed unanimously.

(b)  Modification. The Issuer may, without the consent of the Certificate Holders, effect (i)
any modification of the provisions of the Certificates or the Master Instrument which is
not materially prejudicial to the interests of the Certificate Holders or (ii) any
modification of the provisions of the Certificates or the Master Instrument which is of a
formal, minor or technical nature, which is made to correct an obvious error or which is
necessary in order to comply with mandatory provisions of Singapore law. Any such
modification shall be binding on the Certificate Holders and shall be notified to them by
the Warrant Agent before the date such modification becomes effective or as soon as
practicable thereafter in accordance with Condition 9.

9. Notices

(@) Documents. All cheques and other documents required or permitted by these
Conditions to be sent to a Certificate Holder or to which a Certificate Holder is entitled
or which the Issuer shall have agreed to deliver to a Certificate Holder may be delivered
by hand or sent by post addressed to the Certificate Holder at his address appearing in
the records maintained by CDP or, in the case of joint Certificate Holders, addressed to
the joint holder first named at his address appearing in the records maintained by CDP,
and airmail post shall be used if that address is not in Singapore. All documents
delivered or sent in accordance with this paragraph shall be delivered or sent at the risk
of the relevant Certificate Holder.

(b)  Notices. All notices to Certificate Holders will be validly given if published in English on
the web-site of the SGX-ST. Such notices shall be deemed to have been given on the
date of the first such publication. If publication on the web-site of the SGX-ST is not
practicable, notice will be given in such other manner as the Issuer may determine. The
Issuer shall, at least one month prior to the expiry of any Certificate, give notice of the
date of expiry of such Certificate in the manner prescribed above.

10. Liquidation

In the event of a liquidation or dissolution of the Company or the appointment of a liquidator
(including a provisional liquidator) or receiver or judicial manager or trustee or administrator or
analogous person under Singapore or other applicable law in respect of the whole or substantially the
whole of its undertaking, property or assets, all unexercised Certificates will lapse and shall cease to
be valid for any purpose, in the case of voluntary liquidation, on the effective date of the relevant
resolution and, in the case of an involuntary liquidation or dissolution, on the date of the relevant court
order or, in the case of the appointment of a liquidator (including a provisional liquidator) or receiver or
judicial manager or trustee or administrator or analogous person under Singapore or other applicable
law in respect of the whole or substantially the whole of its undertaking, property or assets, on the
date when such appointment is effective but subject (in any such case) to any contrary mandatory
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requirement of law. In the event of the voluntary liquidation of the Company, the Issuer shall make
such adjustments or amendments as it reasonably believes are appropriate in the circumstances.

11. Further Issues

The Issuer shall be at liberty from time to time, without the consent of the Certificate Holders,
to create and issue further certificates so as to form a single series with the Certificates, subject to the
approval of the SGX-ST.

12. Delisting

(@)

(b)

Delisting. If at any time, the Underlying Stock ceases to be listed on the Relevant
Stock Exchange, the Issuer shall give effect to these Conditions in such manner and
make such adjustments and amendments to the rights attaching to the Certificates as
it shall, in its absolute discretion, consider appropriate to ensure, so far as it is
reasonably able to do so, that the interests of the Certificate Holders generally are not
materially prejudiced as a consequence of such delisting (without considering the
individual circumstances of any Certificate Holder or the tax or other consequences
that may result in any particular jurisdiction).

Issuer's Determination. The Issuer shall determine, in its absolute discretion, any
adjustment or amendment and its determination shall be conclusive and binding on
the Certificate Holders save in the case of manifest error. Notice of any adjustments
or amendments shall be given to the Certificate Holders in accordance with Condition
9 as soon as practicable after they are determined.

13. Early Termination

(@)

Early Termination for lllegality and Force Majeure, efc. If the Issuer determines that a
Regulatory Event (as defined below) has occurred and, for reasons beyond its control,
the performance of its obligations under the Certificates has become illegal or
impractical in whole or in part for any reason, or the Issuer determines that, for reasons
beyond its control, it is no longer legal or practical for it to maintain its hedging
arrangements with respect to the Certificates for any reason, the Issuer may in its
discretion and without obligation terminate the Certificates early in accordance with
Condition 13(c).

Should any one or more of the provisions contained in the Conditions be or become
invalid, the validity of the remaining provisions shall not in any way be affected thereby.

For the purposes of this Condition:

“‘Regulatory Event” means, following the occurrence of a Change in Law (as defined
below) with respect to the Issuer and/or Société Générale as Guarantor or in any other
capacity (including without limitation as hedging counterparty of the Issuer, market
maker of the Certificates or direct or indirect shareholder or sponsor of the Issuer) or
any of its affiliates involved in the issuer of the Certificates (hereafter the “Relevant
Affiliates” and each of the Issuer, Société Générale and the Relevant Affiliates, a
“‘Relevant Entity”) that, after the Certificates have been issued, (i) any Relevant Entity
would incur a materially increased (as compared with circumstances existing prior to
such event) amount of tax, duty, liability, penalty, expense, fee, cost or regulatory
capital charge however defined or collateral requirements for performing its obligations
under the Certificates or hedging the Issuer's obligations under the Certificates,
including, without limitation, due to clearing requirements of, or the absence of, clearing
of the transactions entered into in connection with the issue of, or hedging the Issuer’s
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(b)

(c)

obligation under, the Certificates, (ii) it is or will become for any Relevant Entity
impracticable, impossible (in each case, after using commercially reasonable efforts),
unlawful, illegal or otherwise prohibited or contrary, in whole or in part, under any law,
regulation, rule, judgement, order or directive of any governmental, administrative or
judicial authority, or power, applicable to such Relevant Entity (a) to hold, acquire,
issue, reissue, substitute, maintain, settle, or as the case may be, guarantee, the
Certificates, (b) to acquire, hold, sponsor or dispose of any asset(s) (or any interest
thereof) of any other transaction(s) such Relevant Entity may use in connection with the
issue of the Certificates or to hedge the Issuer’s obligations under the Certificates, (c) to
perform obligations in connection with, the Certificates or any contractual arrangement
entered into between the Issuer and Société Générale or any Relevant Affiliate
(including without limitation to hedge the Issuer’s obligations under the Certificates) or
(d) to hold, acquire, maintain, increase, substitute or redeem all or a substantial part of
its direct or indirect shareholding in the Issuer’s capital or the capital of any Relevant
Affiliate or to directly or indirectly sponsor the Issuer or any Relevant Affiliate, or (iii)
there is or may be a material adverse effect on a Relevant Entity in connection with the
issue of the Certificates.

“Change in law” means (i) the adoption, enactment, promulgation, execution or
ratification of any applicable new law, regulation or rule (including, without limitation,
any applicable tax law, regulation or rule) after the Certificates have been issued, (ii)
the implementation or application of any applicable law, regulation or rule (including,
without limitation, any applicable tax law, regulation or rule) already in force when the
Certificates have been issued but in respect of which the manner of its implementation
or application was not known or unclear at the time, or (iii) the change of any applicable
law, regulation or rule existing when the Certificates are issued, or the change in the
interpretation or application or practice relating thereto, existing when the Certificates
are issued of any applicable law, regulation or rule, by any competent court, tribunal,
regulatory authority or any other entity exercising executive, legislative, judicial, taxing,
regulatory or administrative powers or functions of or pertaining to government
(including any additional or alternative court, tribunal, authority or entity, to that existing
when the Certificates are issued).

Early Termination for other reasons. The Issuer reserves the right (such right to be
exercised in the Issuer’s sole and unfettered discretion and without any obligation
whatsoever) to terminate the Certificates in accordance with Condition 13(c) where an
event or events occur which it believes in its sole discretion should, in the context of the
issue of the Certificates and the obligations of the Issuer, give rise to such termination
provided that such termination (i) is considered by the Issuer not to be materially
prejudicial to the interests of Certificate Holders generally (without considering the
circumstances of any individual Certificate Holder or the tax or other consequences of
such termination in any particular jurisdiction); or (ii) is otherwise considered by the
Issuer to be appropriate and such termination is approved by the SGX-ST.

Termination. If the Issuer terminates the Certificates early, then the Issuer will give
notice to the Certificate Holders in accordance with Condition 9. The Issuer will, if and
to the extent permitted by applicable law, pay an amount to each Certificate Holder in
respect of each Certificate held by such holder equal to the fair market value of a
Certificate notwithstanding such illegality or impracticality less the cost to the Issuer of
unwinding any underlying related hedging arrangements, all as determined by the

34



Issuer in its sole and absolute discretion. Payment will be made in such manner as
shall be notified to the Certificate Holders in accordance with Condition 9.

14. Governing Law

The Certificates, the Master Instrument and the Master Warrant Agent Agreement or Warrant
Agent Agreement will be governed by and construed in accordance with Singapore law. The Issuer
and the Guarantor and each Certificate Holder (by its purchase of the Certificates) shall be deemed to
have submitted for all purposes in connection with the Certificates, the Master Instrument and the
Master Warrant Agent Agreement or Warrant Agent Agreement to the non-exclusive jurisdiction of the
courts of Singapore. The Guarantee shall be governed by and construed in accordance with
Singapore law.

15. Prescription

Claims against the Issuer for payment of any amount in respect of the Certificates will
become void unless made within six years of the Expiry Date and, thereafter, any sums payable in
respect of such Certificates shall be forfeited and shall revert to the Issuer.

16. Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act, Chapter 53B of Singapore

Unless otherwise provided in the Global Warrant, the Master Instrument and the Master
Warrant Agent Agreement or Warrant Agent Agreement, a person who is not a party to any contracts
made pursuant to the Global Warrant, the Master Instrument and the Master Warrant Agent
Agreement or Warrant Agent Agreement has no rights under the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties)
Act, Chapter 53B of Singapore to enforce any terms of such contracts. Except as expressly provided
herein, the consent of any third party is not required for any subsequent agreement by the parties
hereto to amend or vary (including any release or compromise of any liability) or terminate such
contracts.
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SUMMARY OF THE ISSUE

The following is a summary of the issue and should be read in conjunction with, and is
qualified by reference to, the other information set out in this document and the Base Listing
Document. Terms used in this Summary are defined in the Conditions.

Issuer:
Company:

The Certificates:

Number:

Form:

Cash Settlement Amount:

Denominations:

Exercise:

Exercise and Trading
Currency:

Board Lot:

SG Issuer
Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited

European Style Cash Settled Long Certificates relating to the Underlying
Stock

6,700,000 Certificates

The Certificates will be issued subject to, and with the benefit of, a
master instrument by way of deed poll dated 21 June 2019 (the “Master
Instrument”) and executed by the Issuer and the Guarantor and a
master warrant agent agreement dated 29 May 2017 (the “Master
Warrant Agent Agreement’) and made between the Issuer, the
Guarantor and the Warrant Agent.

In respect of each Certificate, is the amount (if positive) equal to:
Notional Amount per Certificate x Closing Level

Certificates are represented by a global warrant in respect of all the
Certificates.

The Certificates may only be exercised on the Expiry Date or if the Expiry
Date is not a Business Day, the immediately preceding Business Day, in
a Board Lot or integral multiples thereof. Certificate Holders will not be
required to deliver an exercise notice. If the Cash Settlement Amount (less
any Exercise Expenses) is positive, all Certificates will be deemed to have
been automatically exercised at 10:00 a.m. (Singapore time) on the Expiry
Date or if the Expiry Date is not a Business Day, the immediately preceding
Business Day. The Cash Settlement Amount less the Exercise Expenses
in respect of the Certificates shall be paid in the manner set out in
Condition 4(c) of the Conditions. In the event the Cash Settlement
Amount (less any Exercise Expenses) is zero, all Certificates shall be
deemed to have expired at 10:00 a.m. (Singapore time) on the Expiry
Date or if the Expiry Date is not a Business Day, the immediately
preceding Business Day, and Certificate Holders shall not be entitled to
receive any payment from the Issuer in respect of the Certificates.

SGD

100 Certificates
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Transfers of Certificates:

Listing:

Governing Law:

Warrant Agent:

Further Issues:

Certificates may only be transferred in Board Lots (or integral multiples
thereof). All transfers in Certificates, in the open market or otherwise,
must be effected through a securities account with CDP. Title will pass
upon registration of the transfer in the records of CDP.

Application has been made to the SGX-ST for permission to deal in and
for quotation of the Certificates and the SGX-ST has agreed in principle
to grant permission to deal in and for quotation of the Certificates. Issue
of the Certificates is conditional on such listing being granted. It is
expected that dealings in the Certificates on the SGX-ST will commence
on or about 3 July 2019.

The laws of Singapore

The Central Depository (Pte) Limited
11 North Buona Vista Drive

#06-07 The Metropolis Tower 2
Singapore 138589

Further issues which will form a single series with the Certificates will be
permitted, subject to the approval of the SGX-ST.

The above summary is a qualified in its entirety by reference to the detailed information
appearing elsewhere in this document and the Base Listing Document.
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INFORMATION RELATING TO THE EUROPEAN STYLE CASH SETTLED LONG CERTIFICATES
ON SINGLE EQUITIES

What are European Style Cash Settled Long Certificates on Single Equities?

European style cash settled long certificates on single equities (the “Certificates”) are structured
products relating to the Underlying Stock and the return on a Certificate is linked to the performance
of the Leverage Strategy.

A) Cash Settlement Amount Payable upon the Exercise of the Certificates at Expiry

Upon the exercise of the Certificates at expiry, the Certificate Holders would be paid a Cash
Settlement Amount in respect of each Certificate.

The Cash Settlement Amount, in respect of each Certificate, shall be an amount payable in the
Settlement Currency equal to the Closing Level multiplied by the Notional Amount per Certificate.

The Closing Level, in respect of each Certificate, shall be an amount payable in the Settlement
Currency equal to (1) divided by (2) less (3) subject to any adjustments such as (4), where:

(1) is the Final Reference Level multiplied by the Final Exchange Rate;
(2) is the Initial Reference Level multiplied by the Initial Exchange Rate;
(3) is the Strike Level; and

(4) is the Hedging Fee Factor.

If the Cash Settlement Amount (less any Exercise Expenses) is positive, all Certificates shall be
deemed to have been automatically exercised and investors will receive a Cash Settlement Amount.
If the Cash Settlement Amount (less any Exercise Expenses) is zero, all Certificates shall be deemed
to have expired. Please refer to the section headed “Terms and Conditions of the European Style
Cash Settled Long/Short Certificates on Single Equities” for further details on the calculation of the
Cash Settlement Amount.

The Certificates are only suitable for investors who believe that the price of the Underlying Stock will
increase and are seeking short-term leveraged exposure to the Underlying Stock.

B) Trading the Certificates before Expiry

If the Certificate Holders want to cash out their investments in the Certificates before the expiry of the
Certificates, they may sell the Certificates in the secondary market during the life of the Certificates,
and would be subject to the following fees and charges:

(i) For Certificate Holders who trade the Certificates intraday: shall pay normal transaction and
brokerage fees for the trading of the Certificates on the SGX-ST, and may be required to pay
stamp taxes or other documentary charges in accordance with the laws and practices of the
country where the Certificates are transferred; and

(ii) For Certificate Holders who hold the Certificates overnight: in addition to the normal
transaction and brokerage fees and applicable stamp taxes, would also be required to bear
the Management Fee and Gap Premium as well as certain costs embedded within the
Leverage Strategy including the Funding Cost and Rebalancing Cost.
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lllustration of the Calculation of Hedging Fee Factor

Hedging Fee

Factor = Product of the Daily Fees

Daily Management Fee Adjustment

1 —Management Fee x ACT (t-1;t) / 360

Daily Fees = X

Daily Gap Premium Adjustment

1 — Gap Premium (t-1) x ACT (t-1;t) / 360

Illustration of the Calculation of Cash Settlement Amount

Cash Settlement Amount = Final Value of Certificates — Strike Level (zero)

t'=0 t=1 t=2 t=i
Leverage Leverage
Value of . Leverage . . .
=| N I Dail Dail Dail
Certificates otional X Strategy daily  x aily | x Str'ategy « aily X Str?tegy « aily
Amount 3 Fees daily Fees Daily Fees
performance
performance performance
t=0 Product of the daily Leverage Strategy Product of the Daily Fees (Hedging Fee
Value of _ « Performance X Factor)
Certificates Notional Le\'/erage Strategy Leyerage Strategy Daily Fees . Daily Fees
Amount daily performance daily performance
Final Value t=0 Final Reference Level x Final Exchange Rate
of = | Notional | x + X Hedging Fee Factor
i Amount
Certificates Initial Reference Level x Initial Exchange Rate

lllustration of the applicable fees and charges for an intraday trading scenario

Hedging Fee is implemented overnight in the price of the Certificate. As a consequence, when trading
intraday, investors will not bear any Hedging Fee.

Investors will only support bid/ask costs, which are the difference between the price at which the
Designated Market Maker purchases (bid) and sells (ask) the Certificate at any point of time.

"“" refers to “Observation Date” which means each Underlying Stock Business Day from (and including) the Underlying Stock

Business Day immediately preceding the Expected Listing Date to the Valuation Date.
8 Leverage Strategy daily performance is computed as the Leverage Strategy Closing Level on Business Day (t) divided by the
Leverage Strategy Closing Level on Business Day (t-1).
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Example of Calculation of Hedging Fee Factor and Cash Settlement Amount

The example is purely hypothetical. We include the example to illustrate how the Certificates work,
and you MUST NOT rely on them as any indication of the actual return or what the payout on the
Certificates might actually be. The example also assumes a product which expires 16 days after
listing date, to illustrate the daily calculation of price, costs and fees from listing date to expiry date.

Assuming an investor purchases the following Certificates at the Issue Price:

Underlying Stock:

Expected Listing Date:
Expiry Date:

Initial Reference Level:
Initial Exchange Rate:

Final Reference Level:
Final Exchange Rate:

Issue Price:

Notional Amount per Certificate:

Management Fee (p.a.):
Gap Premium (p.a.):

Strike Level:

Hedging Fee Factor

Ordinary shares of Sunny Optical Technology
(Group) Company Limited

03/07/2018
18/07/2018

1,000

1,200

0.60 SGD
0.60 SGD
0.40%
5.75%

Zero

Hedging Fee Factor on the n'" Underlying Stock Business Day after issuance of Certificate (“HFF (n)”)

is calculated as follows:

HFF(0) = 100%

On Next Calendar Day (assuming it is an Underlying Stock Business Day):

HFF (1) = HFF (0) X (1— Management Fee X

1
HFF (1) = 100% x (1- 0.40% x %) x (

ACT (t—1;¢t)

ACT (t—1; t))
360

1- P i
) X ( Gap Premium X 360

1
1-575% X —

360)

HFF (1) = 100% X 99.9989% X 99.9840% =~ 99.9829%
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Assuming 2 Underlying Stock Business Day falls 3 Calendar Days after 1% Underlying Stock
Business Day:

ACT (t—1;¢) i ACT (t—1;¢)
HFF (2) = HFF (1) x (1 - Management Fee X 7) X (1 - Gap Premium X 7>
360 360
HFF (2) = 99.9829% x(l 0.40% x 3)><(1 5.75% x 3)
= . 0 - . 0 360 - . 0 360
HFF (2) = 99.9829% x 99.9967% X 99.9521% = 99.9317%
The same principle applies to the following Underlying Stock Business Days:
ACT (t—1;t) ) ACT (t— 1;t)
HFF (n) = HFF (n — 1) x [ 1 - Management Fee X 360 X | 1 - Gap Premium X —3e0

In this example, the Hedging Fee Factor as of the Valuation Date would be equal to 99.7441% as
illustrated below:

3/7/2018 100.0000%
4/7/2018 99.9829%
5/7/2018 99.9658%
6/7/2018 99.9488%
9/7/2018 99.8975%
10/7/2018 99.8805%
11/7/2018 99.8634%
12/7/2018 99.8464%
13/7/2018 99.8293%
16/7/2018 99.7781%
17/7/2018 99.7611%
18/7/2018 99.7441%

Cash Settlement Amount
In this example, the Closing Level and the Cash Settlement Amount would be computed as follows:

Closing Level = [(Final Reference Level x Final Exchange Rate) / (Initial Reference Level x Initial
Exchange Rate) — Strike Level] x Hedging Fee Factor
=[(1200 x 1) / (1000 x 1) — 0] x 99.7441%

=119.69%
Cash Settlement Amount = Closing Level x Notional Amount per Certificate

=119.69% x 0.60 SGD
=0.718 SGD
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Illustration on how returns and losses can occur under different scenarios

The examples are purely hypothetical and do not take fees and charges payable by investors into
consideration. The examples highlight the effect of the Underlying Stock performance on the value of
the Certificates and do not take into account the possible influence of fees, exchange rates, dividends,
or any other market parameters.

1. lllustrative examples

Scenario 1 — Upward Trend

--------- Underlying Stock price

Certificates Value

--------- Underlying Stock price

Certificates Value

Scenario 3 — Volatile Market

--------- Underlying Stock price

Certificates Value
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2. Numerical Examples

Scenario 1 — Upward Trend

Underlying Stock

Day O Day 1 Day 2 Day 3 Day 4 Day 5
Daily return 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0%
Value atend of day 10,000.0 10,200.0 10,404.0 10,612.1 10,824.3 11,040.8
Accumulated Return 2.00% 4.04% 6.12% 8.24% 10.41%
Value of the Certificates
Day 0 Day 1 Day 2 Day 3 Day 4 Day 5
Daily return 10.0% 10.0% 10.0% 10.0% 10.0%
Price at end of day 0.6 0.66 0.73 0.80 0.88 0.97
Accumulated Return 10.00% 21.00%  33.10% 46.41% 61.05%
Scenario 2 — Downward Trend
Underlying Stock
Day 0 Day 1 Day 2 Day 3 Day 4 Day 5
Daily return -2.0% -2.0% -2.0% -2.0% -2.0%
Value atend of day 10,000.0 9,800.0 9,604.0 9,411.9 9,223.7 9,039.2
Accumulated Return -2.00%  -3.96% -5.88% -7.76% -9.61%
Value of the Certificates
Day 0 Day 1 Day 2 Day 3 Day 4 Day 5
Daily return -10.0%  -10.0% -10.0% -10.0% -10.0%
Price at end of day 0.6 0.54 0.49 0.44 0.39 0.35
Accumulated Return -10.00% -19.00% -27.10% -34.39% -40.95%
Scenario 3 — Volatile Market
Underlying Stock
Day 0 Day 1 Day 2 Day 3 Day 4 Day 5
Daily return 2.0% -2.0% 2.0% -2.0% 2.0%
Value atend of day 10,000.0 10,200.0 9,996.0 10,1959 9,992.0 10,191.8
Accumulated Return 2.00% -0.04% 1.96% -0.08% 1.92%
Value of the Certificates
Day 0 Day 1 Day 2 Day 3 Day 4 Day 5
Daily return 10.0% -10.0% 10.0% -10.0% 10.0%
Price at end of day 0.6 0.66 0.59 0.65 0.59 0.65
Accumulated Return 10.00% -1.00% 8.90% -1.99% 7.81%
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Description of Air Bag Mechanism

The Certificates integrate an “Air Bag Mechanism” which is designed to reduce exposure to the
Underlying Stock during extreme market conditions.

When the Air Bag triggers, a 30-minute period starts. This period is divided into two sub-periods:

- Observation Period : during 15 minutes after the Air Bag trigger, the price of the Underlying
Stock is observed and its minimum price is recorded; and

- Reset Period: after 15 minutes, the Leverage Strategy is reset using the minimum price of the
Underlying Stock during the Observation Period as the New Observed Price. The New
Observed Price replaces the last closing price of the Underlying Stock in order to compute the
performance of the Leverage Strategy, 30 minutes after the Air Bag trigger.

Trading of Certificates is suspended for at least 30 minutes after the Air Bag is triggered. Investors
cannot sell or purchase any Certificates during this period.

Air Bag Mechanism timeline

Air Bag Trigger Observation Period Resumption of Trading

Tradingresumes the same day
between 30and 45 minutes
after AirBag Trigger

More than 45 minutes before
Market Close

45 minutes before Market Close

30to 45 minutes before Market First 15 minutes after Air Bag
Close Trigger

30 minutes before Market Close

Nexttrading day at Market
15 to 30 minutes before Market Open
Close

15 minutes before Market Close

From AirBag Triggerto Market
Lessthan 15 minutes before Close
Market Close

With Market Close defined as:
- Underlying Stock closing time with respect to the Observation Period

- The sooner between Underlying Stock closing time and SGX closing time with respect to the
Resumption of Trading
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Illustrative examples of the Air Bag Mechanism

Scenario 1 — Downward Trend after Air Bag trigger

0% >
.-._._... < Suspension of Trading of Leveraged Certificates >
-10%
-20% \ New Observed
\ Price
-30%
Ll
-40% - .
15 Minutes 15 Minutes Reset
Observation Period Period
-50% \
-60%
-70%
«++<++ Underlying Stock Daily Performance Air Bag trigger
N
\‘
-80% . L9 T e Leveraged Certificates™
Leverage Strategy Daily - T~ eaaao. . Tradingresumes
—_—
Performance Leverage Strategy reset
-909 b dontheNew 'y n :
90% Leverage Strategy Daily ”‘6;:2;’\,6; ;ri C: Without Air Bag Mechanism,
Performance without Air Bag Leverage Strategy would
have reached 0
-100% '
Scenario 2 — Upward Trend after Air Bag trigger
0% >
---.._.-"." _ Suspension of Trading of Leveraged Certificates
-10%
20% \ New. nl—\;nr\nrl
\ Price
-30%
. < > € >
-40% 15 Minutes 15 Minutes Reset
Observation Period Period
-50% \
-60% WithoutAirBag-Mechanism,
Leverage Strategy would
have recovered more
-70%
v ) ) \ Air Bag trigger
«+++++ Underlying Stock Daily Performance ~
\\
-80% N Pl
Leverage Strategy Daily Sesse===gEes Leveraged Certificates
Performance Leverage Strategy reset Tradingresumes
-90% based.enthe New
Leverage Strategy Daily Obsenved Price
Performance without Air Bag
-100%
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Scenarios where the investor may lose the entire value of the investment

The scenarios below are purely hypothetical and do not take fees and charges payable by investors
into consideration. The scenarios highlight cases where the Certificates may lose 100% of their value.

Scenario 1 — Overnight fall of the Underlying Stock

On any business day, the opening price of the Underlying Stock may be higher or lower than the
closing price on the previous day. The difference between the previous closing price and the opening
price of the Underlying Stock is termed a “gap”. If the opening price of the Underlying Stock is 20% or
more below the previous day closing price, the Air Bag Mechanism would only be triggered when the
market opens the following day, and the Certificates would lose their entire value in such event.
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Scenario 2 — Sharp intraday fall of the Underlying Stock

Although the Air Bag Mechanism is designed to reduce the exposure to the Underlying Stock during
extreme market conditions, the Certificate can lose 100% of its value in the event the price of the
Underlying Stock falls by 20% or more compared to the previous closing price of the Underlying Stock
or the previous observed price in case of an air bag previously on the same day within the 15 minute
Observation Period. The Certificates would lose their entire value in such event.

»
Suspensbnof TragihgofLeveraged Cenmcates
>
.............. L L T T T LL LT LT bbb
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Prce
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E g L
.................. SIS T S e Reaa T
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ArBag trigger
..................................................... O
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Examples and illustrations of adjustments due to certain corporate actions

The examples are purely hypothetical and do not take fees and charges payable by investors into
consideration. The examples highlight the effect of corporate actions on the value of the Certificates
and do not take into account the possible influence of fees, exchange rates, or any other market
parameters.

In the case of any corporate action on the Underlying Stock, the Calculation Agent will, as soon as
reasonably practical after it becomes aware of such event, determine whether such corporate action
has a dilutive or concentrative effect on the theoretical value of the Underlying Stock, and if so, will (a)
calculate the corresponding adjustment, if any, to be made to the elements relating to the Underlying
Stock which are used to determine any settlement or payment terms under the Certificates and/or
adjust at its discretion any other terms of the Certificates as it determines appropriate to preserve the
economic equivalent of the obligations of the Issuer under the Certificates and (b) determine the
effective date of such adjustment.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event Observation Date (t) is an ex-date with respect to a
corporate action related to the Underlying Stock, the Calculation Agent may, in its sole and absolute
discretion, replace the Rfactor, with respect to such Observation Date (t) by an amount computed
according to the following generic formula :

Div, + DivExc, — M X R] 1

Rfactor, = |1 — X
factor: S, 1+M

This formula is provided for indicative purposes and the Calculation Agent may determine that this
formula is not appropriate for certain corporate actions and may apply a different formula instead.

Such adjustment of Rfactor, would affect the Leveraged Return, the Rebalancing Cost, and the
Underlying Reference Price used to determine the Intraday Restrike Event. The Air Bag mechanism
would not be triggered if the stock price falls by 15% exclusively because of the dilutive effect of a
corporate action.

Where:

DivExc, is the amount received as an Extraordinary Dividend by a holder of existing Shares for each
Share held prior to the Extraordinary Dividend, net of any applicable withholding taxes.

M is the number of new Share(s) (whether a whole or a fraction) per existing Share each holder
thereof is entitled to subscribe or to receive (positive amount) or the number of existing Shares
redeemed or canceled per existing Share (negative amount), as the case may be, resulting from the
corporate action.

R is the subscription price per Share (positive amount) or the redemption price per Share (negative
amount) including any dividends or other benefits forgone to be subscribe to or to receive (as
applicable), or to redeem a Share.

1. Stock split

Assuming the Underlying Stock is subject to a 1 to 2 stock split (i.e. 1 new Share for every 1 existing
share):

Si—1 = $100
S. = $51
Div, = $0

DivExc, = $0
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M =1 (i.e. 1 new Shares for 1 existing Share)

R = $0 (no subscription price / redemption price)

Rfact _[1 0-|-0—2><0)]X 1 _ 50%
factor, = 100 1+1 "
As a consequence:
S 51

LR;_, . = Leverage x (m— 1)=5 x (100><50% —1) =10%

Sic1 St—1 X Rfactor; St Adjusted Underlying

Stock Performance

100 50 51 2%
Value of the Certificate (t-1) Value of the Certificate (t) Certificates’ performance

(excluding any cost and fees)

0.60 0.66 10%

In such case an Intraday Restrike Event would occur if the Underlying Stock price falls to $42.5, which
is 15% below $50, the Underlying Stock Reference Price.

2. Share Consolidation

Assuming the Underlying Stock is subject to a 2 to 1 share consolidation (i.e. 1 Share canceled for
every 2 existing Shares):

Si_1 =$100

S = $202

Div, = $0

DivExc, = $0

M =-0.5 (i.e. 0.5 Shares canceled for each 1 existing Share)

R = $0 (no subscription price / redemption price)

0+0— (=0.5) x 0) 1
Rfactor; = [1 - 100 X 1+ (<05) = 200%
As a consequence:
_ St A 202 _
LRy = Leverage x (st_1 X Rfactory 1) =5 X (100><200% 1) =5%
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Sic1 St—1 X Rfactor; St Adjusted Underlying
Stock Performance

100 200 202 1%

Value of the Certificate (t-1) Value of the Certificate (t) Certificates’ performance
(excluding any cost and fees)

0.60 0.63 5%

In such case an Intraday Restrike Event would occur if the Underlying Stock price falls to $170, which
is 15% below $200, the Underlying Stock Reference Price.

3. Rights Issues

Assuming there is a rights issue with respect to the Underlying Stock, with a right to receive 1 new
Share for every 2 existing Shares, for a subscription price of $40.

Se—1 = $100

S, = $84

Div, = $0

DivExc, = $0

R = $40 (i.e. subscription price of $40)

M = 0.5 (i.e. 1 new share for every 2 existing shares)

Rfact _[1 0+0—0.5><40]>< 1 — 80%
factor, = 100 1+05 7
As a consequence:
S 84

LR,_;; = Leverage X (m— 1) =5 X (1oo><30% - 1) = 25%

St-1 St—1 X Rfactor; St Adjusted Underlying

Stock Performance

100 80 84 5%
Value of the Certificate (t-1) Value of the Certificate (t) Certificates’ performance

(excluding any cost and fees)

0.60 0.75 25%

In such case an Intraday Restrike Event would occur if the Underlying Stock price falls to $68, which
is 15% below $80, the Underlying Stock Reference Price.
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4. Bonus Issues

Assuming there is a bonus issue with respect to the Underlying Stock, where shareholders receive 1

bonus share for 5 existing shares:

Se_q = $100
S¢ = $85
Div, = $0
DivExc, = $0

R =$0

M = 0.2 (i.e. 1 new share for 5 existing shares)

Rfact _[1 0+0—0.2x0]x 1 _ 83.33%
factor, = 100 T+o0z2 oo
As a consequence:
_ St _ _ 85 _ _

LRy = Leverage x (St—l X Rfactor; 1) =5 X (100><83.33% 1) = 10%

St-1 St—1 X Rfactor; St Adjusted Underlying

Stock Performance

100 83.33 85 2%
Value of the Certificate (t-1) Value of the Certificate (t) Certificates’ performance

(excluding any cost and fees)

0.60

0.66

10%

In such case an Intraday Restrike Event would occur if the Underlying Stock price falls to $70.83,

which is 15% below $83.33, the Underlying Stock Reference Price.

5. Extraordinary Dividend

Assuming there is an extraordinary dividend of $20 (net of taxes) paid in respect of each stock.

S,_, = $100
S, = $84
Div, = $0

DivExc, = $20
R=$%0
M=0
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Rfact _[1 0-|-20—0><0]>< 1 _ 809
factor, = 100 1+0 7
As a consequence:
S 84

LRt—l,t = Leverage X (m - 1) =5 X (m - 1) = 25%

St-1 St—1 X Rfactor; St Adjusted Underlying

Stock Performance

100 80 84 5%
Value of the Certificate (t-1) Value of the Certificate (t) Certificates’ performance

(excluding any cost and fees)

0.60 0.75

25%

In such case an Intraday Restrike Event would occur if the Underlying Stock price falls to $68, which

is 15% below $80, the Underlying Stock Reference Price.
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INFORMATION RELATING TO THE COMPANY

All information contained in this document regarding the Company, including, without limitation, its
financial information, is derived from publicly available information which appears on the web-site of
Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (the “HKExCL”) at http:.//www.hkex.com.hk and/or the
Company’s web-site at http.//www.sunnyoptical.com/en/default.html. The Issuer has not
independently verified any of such information.

Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited (the “Company”) (SEHK stock code: 2382) is a
leading company in integrated optical device manufacturers and an optical imaging system solution
provider. The Company went public in 2007 and is listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange.

The Company has strong capabilities in R&D and manufacturing. With great reputation among its
customers worldwide, the company has extended its market in forty countries and regions and has
become the most important supplier to many Tier 1 customers domestically and internationally. The
company has also gained significant global market share in compact module camera, lens sets for
mobile devices and automotive lenses.

The Company has five production sites in Yangtze River Delta, Pearl River Delta, Bohai Bay and
Central Plain Areas, respectively. There are also R&D center and local customer support offices in
North America, Japan, South Korea, Singapore, and Taiwan.

The Company is one of a few enterprises inside China that have first-class design capability and
mass production capacity for integrated products combining optics, mechanics electronics and
software technology. Therefore, it has established its leadership in special coating technology in lens
production, aspherical optics auto-focus and zooming, development in chalcogenide glass material,
embedded software, 3D scanning and imaging, 3D ultra-precision vibration measuring, trace element
analysis, ultra-high pixel camera modules design and manufacturing.

Supported by its high ranking in optoelectronic industry, the Company also promotes its “Famous Co-
Star” strategy with commitment to achieve high tech, high value and high efficiency. Now it is focus on
transformation and upgrading production, profit and operation models in order to advance its
production base with advantages in value, system integration and brand name.

The information set out in the Appendix to this document relates to the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2018 and has been
extracted and reproduced from an announcement by the Company dated 8 April 2019 in relation to
the same. Further information relating to the Company may be located on the web-site of the HKExCL
at http://www.hkex.com.hk.
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INFORMATION RELATING TO THE DESIGNATED MARKET MAKER

Société Générale has been appointed the designated market maker (“DMM?”) for the Certificates. The
DMM will provide competitive buy and sell quotes for the Certificates continuously during the trading
hours of the SGX-ST on the following basis:

(@)
(b)

(c)

Maximum bid and offer spread : 10 ticks or S$0.20 whichever is greater

Minimum quantity subject to bid and : 10,000 Certificates
offer spread

Last Trading Day for Market Making : The date faling 5 Exchange Business Days
immediately preceding the Expiry Date

In addition, the DMM may not provide a quotation in the following circumstances:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)
(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(xi)

(xii)

during the pre-market opening and five minutes following the opening of the SGX-ST on any
trading day;

if the Certificates are valueless (where the Issuer’s bid price is below the minimum bid size for
such securities as prescribed by the SGX-ST), the DMM will not provide the bid price. In such
an instance, the DMM will provide the offer price only;

before the Relevant Stock Exchange for the Underlying Stock has opened and after the
Relevant Stock Exchange for the Underlying Stock has closed on any trading day;

when trading in the Underlying Stock is suspended or limited in a material way for any reason,
for the avoidance of doubt, the DMM is not obliged to provide quotations for the Certificates at
any time when the Underlying Stock is not negotiated/traded for any reason;

where the Certificates are suspended from trading for any reason;

market disruption events, including, without limitation, any suspension of or limitation imposed
on frading (including but not limited to unforeseen circumstances such as by reason of
movements in price exceeding limits permitted by the SGX-ST or any act of God, war, riot,
public disorder, explosion, terrorism or otherwise) in the Underlying Stock;

where the Issuer or the DMM faces technical problems affecting the ability of the DMM to
provide bids and offer quotations;

where the ability of the Issuer to source a hedge or unwind an existing hedge, as determined
by the Issuer in good faith, is materially affected by the prevailing market conditions, and the
Issuer informs the SGX-ST of its inability to do so as soon as practicable;

in cases where the Issuer has no Certificates to sell, then the DMM will only provide the bid
price;

if the stock market experiences exceptional price movement and volatility;

when it is a public holiday in Singapore and/or Hong Kong and/or the SGX-ST and/or the
HKEX are not open for dealings; and

during the suspension of trading of Certificates after an Air Bag Mechanism has been
triggered.
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The last trading day on which the DMM will provide competitive quotations for the Certificates would
be the fifth Exchange Business Day immediately preceding the Expiry Date.
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SUPPLEMENTAL GENERAL INFORMATION

The information set out herein is supplemental to, and should be read in conjunction with, the

information set out on page 99 of the Base Listing Document.

1.

Save as disclosed in this document and the Base Listing Document, neither the Issuer nor the
Guarantor is involved in any legal or arbitration proceedings (including any proceedings which
are pending or threatened of which the Issuer or the Guarantor is aware) which may have or
have had in the previous 12 months a significant effect on the financial position of the Issuer
or the Guarantor in the context of the issuance of the Certificates.

Settlement of trades done on a normal “ready basis” on the SGX-ST generally take place on
the third Business Day following the transaction. Dealing in the Certificates will take place in
Board Lots in Singapore dollars. For further details on the transfer of Certificates and their
exercise, please refer to the section headed “Summary of the Issue” above.

It is not the current intention of the Issuer to apply for a listing of the Certificates on any stock
exchange other than the SGX-ST.

Save as disclosed in the Base Listing Document and herein, there has been no material
adverse change in the financial position or prospects of the Issuer since 31 December 2018
or the Guarantor since 31 March 2019, in the context of the issuance of Certificates
hereunder.

The following contracts, relating to the issue of the Certificates, have been or will be entered
into by the Issuer and/or the Guarantor and may be material to the issue of the Certificates:

(a) the Guarantee;
(b) the Master Instrument; and
(c) the Master Warrant Agent Agreement.

None of the directors of the Issuer and the Guarantor has any direct or indirect interest in any
of the above contracts.

The Auditors of the Issuer and the Guarantor have given and have not withdrawn their written
agreement to the inclusion of the report, included herein, in the form and context in which it is
included. Their report was not prepared exclusively for incorporation into this document.

The Auditors of the Issuer and the Guarantor have no shareholding in the Issuer or the
Guarantor or any of its subsidiaries, nor do they have the right (whether legally enforceable or
not) to subscribe for or to nominate persons to subscribe for securities of the Issuer or the
Guarantor or any of its subsidiaries.

The Certificates are not fully covered by the Underlying Stock held by Issuer or a trustee for
and on behalf of the Issuer. The Issuer has appropriate risk management capabilities to
manage the issue of the Certificates.

Société Générale, Singapore Branch, currently of 8 Marina Boulevard, #12-01 Marina Bay
Financial Centre Tower 1, Singapore 018981, has been authorised to accept, on behalf of the
Issuer and the Guarantor, service of process and any other notices required to be served on
the Issuer or the Guarantor. Any notices required to be served on the Issuer or the Guarantor
should be sent to Société Générale at the above address for the attention of Société
Générale Legal Department.
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Copies of the following documents may be inspected during usual business hours on any
weekday (Saturdays, Sundays and holidays excepted) at the offices of Société Générale,
Singapore Branch at 8 Marina Boulevard, #12-01 Marina Bay Financial Centre Tower 1,
Singapore 018981, during the period of 14 days from the date of this document:

(@)

(b)
(c)
(d)

(e)
()
(9)

the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Issuer and the Constitutional
Documents of the Guarantor;

the latest financial reports (including the notes thereto) of the Issuer;
the latest financial reports (including the notes thereto) of the Guarantor;

the consent letters from the Auditors to the Issuer and the Guarantor referred to in
paragraph 6 above;

the Base Listing Document;
this document; and

the Guarantee.
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PLACING AND SALE

General

No action has been or will be taken by the Issuer that would permit a public offering of the
Certificates or possession or distribution of any offering material in relation to the Certificates in any
jurisdiction where action for that purpose is required. No offers, sales or deliveries of any Certificates,
or distribution of any offering material relating to the Certificates may be made in or from any
jurisdiction except in circumstances which will result in compliance with any applicable laws or
regulations and will not impose any obligation on the Issuer. In the event that the Issuer contemplates
a placing, placing fees may be payable in connection with the issue and the Issuer may at its
discretion allow discounts to placees.

Each Certificate Holder undertakes that it will inform any subsequent purchaser of the terms
and conditions of the Certificates and all such subsequent purchasers as may purchase such
securities from time to time shall deemed to be a Certificate Holder for the purposes of the Certificates
and shall be bound by the terms and conditions of the Certificates.

Singapore

This document has not been registered as a prospectus with the Monetary Authority of
Singapore. Accordingly, this document and any other document or material in connection with the
offer or sale, or invitation for subscription or purchase, of Certificates may not be circulated or
distributed, nor may Certificates be offered or sold, or be made the subject of an invitation for
subscription or purchase, whether directly or indirectly, to persons in Singapore other than pursuant
to, and in accordance with the conditions of, any applicable provision of the Securities and Futures
Act, Chapter 289 of Singapore.

Hong Kong

Each dealer has represented and agreed, and each further dealer appointed in respect of the
Certificates and each other purchaser will be required to represent and agree, that it has not issued or
had in its possession for the purposes of issue, and will not issue or have in its possession for the
purposes of issue, whether in Hong Kong or elsewhere, any advertisement, invitation or document
relating to the Certificates, which is directed at, or the contents of which are likely to be accessed or
read by, the public of Hong Kong (except if permitted to do so under the securities laws of Hong
Kong) other than with respect to Certificates which are or are intended to be disposed of only to
persons outside Hong Kong or only to "professional investors" as defined in the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Cap.571) of Hong Kong and any rules made under that Ordinance.

European Economic Area

Each dealer represents and agrees, and each further dealer appointed in respect of the
Certificates will be required to represent and agree that, it has not offered, sold or otherwise made
available and will not offer, sell, or otherwise make available any Certificates which are the subject of
the offering as contemplated by the this document to any retail investor in the European Economic
Area. For the purposes of this provision:

(a) the expression “retail investor” means a person who is one (or more) of the following:

(i) a retail client as defined in point (11) of Article 4(1) of Directive 2014/65/EU (as
amended, “MiFID II"); or
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(ii) a customer within the meaning of Directive 2016/97/EU (as amended, the Insurance
Distribution Directive), where that customer would not qualify as a professional client
as defined in point (10) of Article 4(1) of MiFID II; or

(iii) not a qualified investor as defined in Directive 2003/71/EC (as amended, including by
Directive 2010/73/EU, the Prospectus Directive); and

(b) the expression “offer” includes the communication in any form and by any means of sufficient
information on the terms of the offer and the Certificates to be offered so as to enable an
investor to decide to purchase or subscribe the Certificates.

United Kingdom

Each dealer has represented and agreed, and each further dealer appointed in respect of the
Certificates will be required to represent and agree, that:

(a) in respect to Certificates having a maturity of less than one year: (i) it is a person whose
ordinary activities involve it in acquiring, holding, managing or disposing of investments (as
principal or agent) for the purposes of its business; and (ii) it has not offered or sold and will
not offer or sell any Certificates other than to persons whose ordinary activities involve them
in acquiring, holding, managing or disposing of investments (as principal or agent) for the
purposes of their businesses or who it is reasonable to expect will acquire, hold, manage or
dispose of investments (as principal or agent) for the purposes of their businesses where the
issue of the Certificates would otherwise constitute a contravention of Section 19 of Financial
Services and Markets Act, as amended (the “FSMA”) by the Issuer;

(b) it has only communicated or caused to be communicated and will only communicate or cause
to be communicated an invitation or inducement to engage in investment activity (within the
meaning of section 21 of the FSMA) received by it in connection with the issue or sale of any
Certificates in circumstances in which section 21(1) of the FSMA does not apply to the Issuer
or the Guarantor; and

(c) it has complied and will comply with all applicable provisions of the FSMA with respect to
anything done by it in relation to any Certificates in, from or otherwise involving the United
Kingdom.

United States

The Certificates and the Guarantee have not been and will not be registered under the United
States Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act’) or any state securities law, and
trading in the Certificates has not been approved by the United States Commodity Futures Trading
Commission (the “CFTC”) under the United States Commodity Exchange Act of 1936, as amended
(the “Commodity Exchange Act”) and the Issuer will not be registered as an investment company
under the United States Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, and the rules and regulations
thereunder. None of the Securities and Exchange Commission, any state securities commission or
regulatory authority or any other United States, French or other regulatory authority has approved or
disapproved of the Certificates or the Guarantee or passed upon the accuracy or adequacy of this
document. Accordingly, Certificates, or interests therein, may not at any time be offered, sold, resold,
traded, pledged, exercised, redeemed, transferred or delivered, directly or indirectly, in the United
States or to, or for the account or benefit of, U.S. persons, nor may any U.S. person at any time trade,
own, hold or maintain a position in the Certificates or any interests therein. In addition, in the absence
of relief from the CFTC, offers, sales, re-sales, trades, pledges, exercises, redemptions, transfers or
deliveries of Certificates, or interests therein, directly or indirectly, in the United States or to, or for the
account or benefit of, U.S. persons, may constitute a violation of United States law governing
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commodities trading and commodity pools. Consequently, any offer, sale, resale, trade, pledge,
exercise, redemption, transfer or delivery made, directly or indirectly, within the United States or to, or
for the account or benefit of, a U.S. person will not be recognised.

Each dealer has represented and agreed, and each further dealer will be required to
represent and agree, that it has not and will not at any time offer, sell, resell, trade, pledge, exercise,
redeem, transfer or deliver, directly or indirectly, Certificates in the United States or to, or for the
account or benefit of, any U.S. person or to others for offer, sale, resale, trade, pledge, exercise,
redeem, transfer or delivery, directly or indirectly, in the United States or to, or for the account or
benefit of, any such U.S. person. Any person purchasing Certificates of any tranches must agree with
the relevant dealer or the seller of such Certificates that (i) it will not at any time offer, sell, resell,
trade, pledge, exercise, redeem, transfer or deliver, directly or indirectly, any Certificates in the United
States or to, or for the account or benefit of, any U.S. person or to others for offer, sale, resale, trade,
pledge, exercise, redemption, transfer or delivery, directly or indirectly, in the United States or to, or for
the account or benefit of, any U.S. person, and (ii) it is not purchasing any Certificates for the account
or benefit of any U.S. person.

Exercise or otherwise redemption of Certificates will be conditional upon certification that
each person exercising or otherwise redeeming a Certificate is not a U.S. person or in the United
States and that the Certificate is not being exercised or otherwise redeemed on behalf of a U.S.
person. No payment will be made to accounts of holders of the Certificates located in the United
States.

As used in the preceding paragraphs, the term “United States” includes the territories, the
possessions and all other areas subject to the jurisdiction of the United States of America, and the
term “U.S. person” means any person who is (i) a U.S. person as defined under Regulation S under
the Securities Act, (ii) a U.S. person as defined in paragraph 7701(a)(30) of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, or (iii) a person who comes within any definition of U.S. person for the purposes of the
United States Commodity Exchange Act of 1936, as amended (the “CEA”) or any rules thereunder of
the CFTC, guidance or order proposed or issued under the CEA (for the avoidance of doubt, any
person who is not a “Non-United States person” defined under CFTC Rule 4.7(a)(1)(iv), but excluding,
for purposes of subsection (D) thereof, the exception for qualified eligible persons who are not “Non-
United States persons”, shall be considered a U.S. person).
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APPENDIX

REPRODUCTION OF THE AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 OF
SUNNY OPTICAL TECHNOLOGY (GROUP) COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

The information set out below is a reproduction of the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2018 and has been extracted and
reproduced from an announcement by the Company dated 8 April 2019 in relation to the same.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Deloitte.

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SUNNY OPTICAL TECHNOLOGY (GROUP) COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sunny
Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages
147 to 302, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matter

PR EZF R

Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited ® ANNUAL REPORT 2018

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

B ED AN 2 IR R IR X R IR

Impairment assessment of trade receivables ‘& 5 & Ug k18 Y e B 514

We identified impairment assessment of trade receivables
as a key audit matter due to the significance of trade
receivables to the Group’s consolidated financial position
and the involvement of subjective judgement and
management estimates in evaluating the expected credit
loss (“ECL”) of the Group’s trade receivables at the end of
the reporting period.

ERNEBEZRWFRY BESKEAHMBRANERZNE - L
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As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s net trade
receivables amounting to RMB5,085,128,000, which
represented approximately 22% of total assets of the
Group. Details of trade receivables are set out in Note 27
to the consolidated financial statements.
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As disclosed in Note 37(b) to the consolidated financial
statements, the management of the Group estimates the
amount of lifetime ECL of trade receivables based on
provision matrix through grouping of various debtors that
have similar loss patterns. Estimated loss rates are based
on historical observed default rates over the expected
life of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking
information. In addition, trade receivables that are credit
impaired are assessed for ECL individually.
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Qur procedures in relation to impairment assessment of
trade receivables included:

BAHE S RKSRRBEN ERERERDT

e Understanding and testing the design, implementation
and operating effectiveness of the management’s key
internal controls relating to credit control, debt collection
and providing allowance under ECL model;

o BRLHHRERE  ESERRADEREERR
Th0 B B B R B R BB IR AT BAFT R A
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e Testing the integrity of information used by management
to develop the provision matrix, including trade
receivables ageing analysis as at 1 January 2018 and
31 December 2018, on a sample basis, by comparing
individual items in the analysis with supporting
documents;
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e Challenging management’s basis and judgement in
determining credit loss allowance on trade receivables
as at 1 January 2018 and 31 December 2018, including
their identification of credit impaired trade receivables,
the reasonableness of management’s grouping of the
remaining trade debtors into different categories in the
provision matrix, and the basis of estimated loss rates
applied in each category in the provision matrix (with
reference to historical default rates and forward-looking
information); and
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e FEvaluating the disclosures regarding the impairment
assessment of trade receivables in Notes 2, 27 and
37(b) to the consolidated financial statements.
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged
with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

e FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 3% B ED R

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Jacky Wong Suk Hung.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

19 March 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

mEBEEkEMZERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 #t %2 —ZE— \F+—-A=+—HI-FZF

2018 2017

—E-N\F T

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMET T ARBTTT

Revenue YA 5,6 25,931,852 22,366,252
Cost of sales $H%& KA (21,018,737) (17,563,489)
Gross profit 7 4,913,115 4,802,763
Other income H Wz 7(a) 467,024 206,387
Other gains and losses £ fth 4z & E518 7(b) (292,979) 93,296
Impairment losses, net of reversal JE{EE518 » R [El (3,851) 42,901
Selling and distribution expenses 55 & 7 57 X (209,872) (205,052)
Research and development expenditure 2% 5% (1,362,345) (1,168,157)
Administrative expenses 171 &% (433,894) (388,922)
Share of results of associates 7 {5 HE & A 7] H 45 19 (23,787) (16,096)
Finance costs @& A 8 (202,137) (48,801)
Profit before tax B 51 4 71 2,851,274 3,318,319
Income tax expense TS5 % 9 (338,595) (404,205)
Profit for the year R & A 11 2,512,679 2,914,114

Other comprehensive (expense) income HfttZ2H (BIx) W
Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
TEEH A EEEmAAE -
Fair value loss on investments in equity instruments
at fair value through other comprehensive income
BRAREFAREMEZERRNER TAREN AR EEE (54,065) -

Item that may be reclassified subsequent to profit or loss:
HE B EE Bt RHE -
Exchange differences arising on translation from foreign operations

MEGINETSFTEERIE R =58 2,137 (2,199)
Other comprehensive expense for the year £ AE M2 EE X (51,928) (2,199
Total comprehensive income for the year £ A2 H Wz 42 58 2,460,751 2,911,915
Profit for the year attributable to: f&{k 4 K& Fl

Owners of the Company ANA &% & 2,490,872 2,901,554

Non-controlling interests FE{2 J 4 25 21,807 12,560

2,512,679 2,914,114

Total comprehensive income attributed to: fE{5 2 E WS 4258 ¢
Owners of the Company ANA &) i% & 2,438,083 2,899,926
Non-controlling interests FE{2 J 4 25 22,668 11,989
2,460,751 2,911,915
Earnings per share — Basic (RMB cents) & &F| — EAX (ARE 5) 13 227.92 266.76

- Diluted (RMB cents) —#8 (ARE ») 13 227.25 265.61
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PRI R

AT 371 DECEMBER 2018 R=—E—\F+_H=+—H

31/12/2018 31/12/2017
—E-N\F —E—+4F
+=A=+—8H +-A=+—8

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT

NON-CURRENT ASSETS ¥ REEE

Property, plant and equipment ¥13 + #23 M & 15 4,522,741 2,585,922
Prepaid lease payments Fa{If#H & 16 213,823 162,928
Investment properties & #)13 17 49,689 54,080
Intangible assets & & 18 348,821 392,424
Interests in associates KB & A AIHYAE R 19 100,808 124,595
Deferred tax assets iEIEFITHE E 20 42,599 40,435
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant and equipment

RUBYE  EELRRBEDINES 21 401,342 594,992
Available-for-sale investments A f &% & 22 = 129,373

Equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVTOCI") A f Bt AE b 2 HE Uk ES

(MRARBEFAEMEEKEZE]) T A 23 106,583 —
Debt instruments at amortised cost 12 K ANzt EHEKE T A 24 54,479 -
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)

BRAnEFGF ARG ([(BRAARESAER] NEe@MEE 25 235,085 -

Deposits paid for acquisition of land use rights

HWE L FEAEE X HES - 3,823

Derivative financial assets $T4 £ @& & 29 7,799 2,283
6,083,769 4,090,855

CURRENT ASSETS HRE&E

Inventories 7 & 26 3,073,922 2,621,844

Trade and other receivables and prepayment

B 5 & H h FE U R IE R FE R R IE 27 6,231,486 5,665,689

Prepaid lease payments T8 FH & 16 5,581 4,515

Tax recoverable AJ Y (@] Fi 18 111,863 =

Derivative financial assets $74 4 gl & & 29 38,986 1,092

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

BRAREFABRNEREE 25 4,759,582 1,952,340

Debt instruments at amortised cost

REHA T ENEBITA 24 54,915 -

Amounts due from a related party [& Y [EE A 7008 42(c) 3,032 2,810

Pledged bank deposits & R 17173 28 214,708 140,288

Short term fixed deposits %2 &€ Hi7F 7% 28 20,000 20,000

Bank balances and cash $R1T7#& 8 MR ¢ 28 2,254,299 1,226,877

16,768,374 11,635,455
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PR R

AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 R —FE— \¥F+=-A=+—H

31/12/2018 31/12/2017
—E-N\F —E—+4F
+=A=+—8~ +=—A=+—8

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARBTT

CURRENT LIABILITIES B & &

Trade and other payables & 5 & £ & - 718 30 7,063,861 6,182,802
Amounts due to related parties fE{E7E A + 718 42(c) 8,978 4,087
Derivative financial liabilities $74 % @l & & 29 741 30,438
Tax payable fE{SFEI8 - 101,494
Bank borrowings $R1TEE 32 1,482,405 1,347,881
Contract liabilities &4 & & 31 110,281 -
Deferred income — current portion iEIEW A — ENEFER S 33 11,175 38,788
8,677,441 7,705,490
NET CURRENT ASSETS #EBIEE FE 8,090,933 3,929,965
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES
HWEERREEE 14,174,702 8,020,820
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ¥ REAE
Deferred tax liabilities #EILFIE & & 20 403,328 106,895
Derivative financial liabilities T4 £ gt & & 29 2,682 2,697
Long term payables & 2f&E 1+ 7k 1E 30 330,452 347,294
Deferred income — non-current portion & iE Y A — FEENEREE 33 70,113 44,825
Bonds payable &5 34 4,079,983 =
4,886,558 501,611
NET ASSETS & FH 9,288,144 7,519,209
CAPITAL AND RESERVES RZA K &
Share capital %7 35 105,163 105,177
Reserves & 9,128,934 7,383,342
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 2N 2 &) A% 58 fE (5 25 9,234,097 7,488,519
Non-controlling interests FE#ZE A HEZE 54,047 30,690
TOTAL EQUITY #E&H=4 % 9,288,144 7,519,209

The consolidated financial statements on pages 147 to 302 were HWF147EFI0RE 2 izaEHExgEES=Ten
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 19 —ZF—hE= A+ h B EREET|ZE - SWH T

March 2019 and are signed on its behalf by: FIEERREZ
Mr. YE Liaoning Mr. SUN Yang
ERERLE BREE
CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR

FRE EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mERREHR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 37 DECEMBER 20718 #i %2 —F— \E+ - A=+—HIFFEZF

Shares
capital

Share
premium

R
RMB'000
ARETT

Special
reserve

RHGE
RMB'000
NRETT

Statutory
surplus
reserve

EE
BHER
RMB'000

S

(Note a)
(Hfzka)

Attributable to

Discretionary
surplus
reserve

HiERRRE
RMB'000
ARETT
(Note g)

reserves

Ak
RMB000

NRETT
(Note b)

ers of the Company

Shares held
under
share
award

scheme

RH8G
2hi
#ARES
RMB'000
ARRTR

Shares
award
scheme
reserve

Rt 2R
HEE
RMB'000
NRETTL

FVTOCI
reserve
BAAE
A
2k
S
fifh
RMB000

AR

ranslation
reserve

BERE
RMB’OOO

Retained
profits

REET
RMB 000
ABRTT

/J\%f
MB'000

AV R

Non-
controlling
interests

it
RMB'000
ARETTL

At 1 January 2017 R=F—t5-F—-R 105177 481,823 149800 31,003 916 278,679 (151,620) 44,957 - 5749 3948771 4,895,255 18,087 4,913,342
Profitfor the year & /7] - - - - - - - - - 2901554 2901554 12,560 2,914,114
Exchange differences arising on

translation from foreign operations
BEBIEBREENEL R - - - - - - - - - (162 - (1629) (B71) (2,199)
Total comprehensive (expense) income

for the year N2 (F%) K E = = = - - - - - - (1628) 2,901,554 2,899,926 11,989 2,911,915
Purchase of shares under share

award scheme RER D REHEEERD - - - - - - (80,518) - - - - [80519) - (80519)
Recognition of equity-settled share-based

payments BRMEREER D[RR - - - - - - - 89,158 - - - 89,158 - 89,158
Shares vested under share award scheme
RERNHZBEBRORA = - - - - - 87,285 (84,177) - - (3,078) - - -
Capital contribution from non-controlling

interests FARERRTE - - - - - - - - - - - - 614 614
Dividends paid (Note 12) B8 (Ff12) - (318,130 - - - - - - - - - [318130) - (318,130)
Dividends received under share award

scheme RER (AR EMEARE - 2828 - - - - - - - - - 2,828 - 2,828
Appropriation &2 - - - - - 50,088 - - = - (50,089) = = o
At 31 December 2017
RZF—tE+ZA=1-R 105,177 166,521 149,800 31,008 916 328,767 (144,883 49,938 - 4121 6,797,159 7,488,519 30690 7,519,209
Remeasurement of allowance subject

to expected credit losses (Note 2)
REESEEHR

EfireRE () - - - - - = = = - - (1,966) (1,966) - (1,966)
Revaluation reserve (Note 2) Ef& /& (Fiz2) - - - - - - - - 3218 - - 35218 - 35218
At 1 January 2018 (restated)
RZ2-)\§-A-R (B&5)) 105177 166521 149,800 31,00 916 328,767 (144883 49938 35218 4121 6,795,193 7521771 30,690 7,552,461
Profit for the year F AT = - = - - - - - - - 2490872 2490872 21,807 2,512,679
Other comprehensive (expense)

income for the year
EREMRE (FX) ha - - - - - - - - (54,085 1,276 - (62,789) 861 (51,928
Total comprehensive (expense) income

for the year
FREE (FY) halE - - - - - - - - (54,089 1,216 2490872 2,438,083 22,668 2,460,751
Purchase of shares under share award

scheme RERAREHBERH - - - - - - (78,272) - - - -8 - (1819
Recognition of equity-settled share-based

payments BN EREE RN ARNZE - - - - - - - B - - - %1% - B
Shares vested under share award scheme
RERN ZE HBEORG - - - - - - 91,058  (88,178) - - (2,880) - - -
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 10)
HENBAR (HiE10) - - - - - - - - - - - - 689 689
Dividends paid (Note 12) 218 (Kiz12) - (155,480) - - - - - - - - [569631)  (725,117) - (511
Dividends received under share award

scheme
RERHREERROES - 2,680 - - - - - - - - - 2,680 - 2,680
Repurchase of ordinary shares &3t (14 (11,039) - - - - - - - - - (11,049 - (11,049
Release of general risk reserve —H BB &R = - - - - (119 - - - - - 7.131) - (7,131)
Appropriation &4 - - - - - 89,080 - - - - (89,080) - - -
At 31 December 2018
R=E-\$tA=t-A 105,163 2680 149,800 31,003 916 410,716 (132,097) 54892  (18,847) 5307 8624474 9,234,097 54,047 9,288,144
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 37 DECEMBER 2018 #t %2 —F— 1+ = A=+—HI - F/ZF

Notes:

(@)

The statutory surplus reserve and discretionary surplus reserve are
non-distributable and the transfer to these reserves is determined by the
board of directors of subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) in accordance with the Articles of Association of
the subsidiaries. Statutory surplus reserve can be used to make up
for previous year’s losses or convert into additional capital of the PRC
subsidiaries of the Company. Discretionary surplus reserve can be used
to expand the existing operations of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries.

Other reserves represent enterprise expansion fund and reserve fund.
These reserves are non-distributable and the transfer to these reserves
are determined by the board of directors of the PRC subsidiaries in
accordance with the Articles of Association. Other reserves can be used
to make up for previous year’s losses or convert into additional capital of
the Company’s PRC subsidiaries.

On 1 January 2018, the Group irrevocably elected to designate certain
investments in equity instruments as at FVTOCI and the FVTOCI reserve
is related to the gains or losses arising from the changes in fair value of
the designated equity investments recognised in other comprehensive
income.

GEX

(a)

EEBRBHBEERNERHKEETIAREIR 8
BREZSHENFBRBANPEARLNE (5
B KZHWHBARNESEREMBARNE
RANETE  AERSKFEENBRBELFEER
FEHER/ARRTBEMBARNEIIER - BiER
HiFEERERRAARTEMBRRANRE X
& o

HitEEECEERES LGS - ZFFHBEITH
REDIK - MEREZSFEERIAASH D EKHE
ARNMEFSREERZARNET - LMHEET AR
FE L FEERREBEBAA DA R BEME A RRRE
SNEA o

MR2018F1A1H  ANEB T A BiEHh iR B8 F ik
AhEFAEMEAKSMESE TANSETIRE -
MiE AR B AL MEERENFEEEREMEE
K NERIE ERESREN AR EZBMEEN
Wzssk BB A o
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HERTRER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 &t —ZF— N+ - A =+—HI-FF

2018 2017
—g-N% —T—t%

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARETIT

OPERATING ACTIVITIES K& &8

Profit before tax B & 51 s F1 2,851,274 3,318,319
Adjustments for: FH%& :
Share of results of associates 25 Hf & A IS4 23,787 16,096
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #)3 - #22 KRG E 771,411 489,202
Depreciation of investment properties &Y ETE 4,391 2,028
Gain on changes in fair value of derivative financial instruments, net
THEEMIARNAEEENKE - F5E (73,022) (49,796)
Gain on fair value changes of financial assets at FVTPL
RAREFABRNEeREEAABEE SRR (3,455) -
Release of prepaid lease payments & {70 & fi# 4,842 4,498
Amortisation of intangible assets & & = # 43,603 43,603
Allowance for inventories 17 & # & 60,034 29,019
Impairment loss, net of reversal JH{EE 12 + #[EF58 3,851 (42,901)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
HEME - R RREEE 1,914 639
Gain on disposal of land use right Hi & £ i {5 W 2S (1,798) -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries H &k B A 7z (857) -
Gain on acquisition of a subsidiary 4§ {8 A =l zs = (1,308)
Expense recognised in respect of share award scheme
AR LB T B M AR A 2 1 93,132 89,168
Release of deferred income #EEU A 7 B (43,863) (14,474)
Interest income from short term fixed deposits and bank balances
FEEE B R R RTTA AT S A (15,104) (4,209)
Interest income from pledged bank deposits = #8817 77 7 Kl S A (2,305) (1,770)
Interest income from debt instruments &7 T A5 S U A (10,503) =
Investment income from unlisted financial products
KEFLETERERNRERA (181,271) (68,957)
Finance costs Bh& 28 202,137 48,801
Net foreign exchange loss [& i /&5 18;% 5 305,052 =
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital
LEECEPANLERERE 4,033,250 3,857,943
(Increase) Decrease in inventories 775 (£ n) 4> (519,925) 177,499
Increase in trade and other receivables and prepayment
B 5 N Ho b e W R TE N TR FRIA I AN (620,028) (1,835,010)
Increase in amounts due from a related party &4t #8:E A + FRIEIE N (222) (2,128)
Increase in trade and other payables & 5 K H th f& < ZUIE L N 847,014 494,404
Increase in contract liabilities & 478 &3 1 34,231 =
Increase in deferred income JEZEU A 35 0 51,171 39,926
Increase (Decrease) in amounts due to related parties
FE{ST A A TR CRl) 4,891 (1,118)
Cash generated from operations 4% & EEFT1SIE & 3,830,382 2,731,516
Income taxes paid E.{5 FT1S & 58 (262,490) (295,240)

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES & & E8 i3 & 25 3,567,892 2,436,276
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERETRER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 37 DECEMBER 2018 # % —ZF— )\ E+ = A=+—HIFF/Z

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES ®R&EE
Placement of short term fixed deposits 172 2 & EifE 3¢ (3,111,499) (170,287)
Withdrawal of short term fixed deposits H2EXiE 2 5E HifE =X 3,111,499 309,532
Purchases of property, plant and equipment f8 & #% - #2288 (2,134,098) (1,141,790)
Purchases of intangible assets U i &2 & &= (45,844) (43,754)
Acquisition of land use right Y& + {55 F 4 (80,144) (3,464)
Placement of pledged bank deposits 77 i & IR 17173 (720,656) (617,619)
Release of pledged bank deposits fZk 2 3R IE 1T 646,236 478,298
Purchases of unlisted financial products Y& 3F & @l E & (46,832,550) (33,428,503)
Release of unlisted financial products f#&3F F 4 /lE 44,352,820 33,503,660
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant and equipment
MUY  HBRFHEEIAHNERS (357,307) (576,464)
Purchase of debt instruments at FVTPL
R AR B A BENERTE (149,236) -
Purchase of fund investments at FVTPL
WER AR B ABENESIRE (316,965) =
Purchase of debt instruments at amortised cost
I R B SR AN G T EEB TR (101,079) -
Purchase of equity investments at FVTPL UiEIZ A it (Bt A B FRRAE IR & (20,000) -
Purchase of equity instruments at FVTOCI
R AR B AL AR ENERTE (28,000) -
Purchase of available-for-sale investments f& A f] i H &% & = (77,094)
Interest and investment income received 2 W 8 &% E WA 236,212 79,834
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
LEYZE - s REREFTEHIE 29,779 13,388
Proceeds from disposal of land use right & =+ {5 A # 1S 218 25,139 =
Proceeds from the disposal of available-for-sale investment
HE R EREERIE = 9,988
Disposal of subsidiaries &K@ A (3,597) -
Acquisition of a subsidiary Y& B A 7 = (27,361)
Investment in associates F B A 7 Z 1% E = (94,639)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES & ZEft R € F58 (5,499,290) (1,686,275)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HERTRER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 &t —ZF— N+ - A =+—HI-FF

FINANCING ACTIVITIES Ri& EE)

2018
—E-N\EF

RMB’000
AR®T R

2017
—E—+tF
RMB’000
ARBTIT

Interest paid 21~ F & (124,517) (37,026)
Dividends paid 21 I & (725,117) (318,130)
New bank borrowings raised ¥7i$R7712 & 1,898,175 1,805,448
Repayment of bank borrowings {&&E1TEE (1,810,381) (1,361,915)
Dividends received under share award scheme
RIRAR 15 BB =t B UCER A AR 2 2,680 2,828
Purchase of shares under share award scheme
RIR A% A7 22 B at E1 88 B AR 1n (78,272) (80,518)
Proceeds from bond issuance &% %17 P15 718 3,832,145 -
Payment for transaction costs of issue of bond Xz &% 3 1THI 2 B A A (26,885) =
Payment on repurchase of shares % {7 &l #& 718 (11,049) -
Capital contribution from non-controlling interest of a subsidiary
8 A RISF R 2 H)E B - 1,524
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES Bt &8 i8R & F 5 2,956,779 12,211
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
ReRASEHEERENFRE 1,025,381 762,212
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 JANUARY
R—A—HWEERAESEEER 1,226,877 466,928
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes
EXEHNTE 2,041 (2,263)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER,
R+-—B=+—HWREERHELEEER -

represented by bank balances and cash MASR1T4588 M IR & 275 2,254,299 1,226,877
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR HRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 37 DECEMBER 20718 # % —ZF— &+ A=+—HI-FEZ

1. GENERAL

Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 21
September 2006 as an exempted company under the Companies
Law Chapter 21 (Law 3 of 1961 as consolidated and revised) of
the Cayman Islands and its shares have been listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited with effect from 15 June 2007. Its
ultimate holding and parent company is Sun Xu Limited, a private
limited company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. Its
ultimate controlling party is Mr. Wang Wenijian, also a director of
the Company. The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the Corporate
Information section of the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively “the Group”) are principally
engaged in the business of designing, researching and developing,
manufacturing and selling of optical and optical related products
and scientific instruments.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”), which is also the functional currency of the Company.

1. 8%

RFHEME (RE) BARAR ([ARF])
R-ZBZERFAA-+ - RERSHERE
MERESRAEENE (“ARN—FF =K
AP BERE RER]) R RSERER
A EHRHBE —TTLFAATHEEREES
BHMAERSAARRDR L™ - RERRE
NEB—RARNRBELESEMKIZALA
BRABRBERAR > MEKEBRALR
IXERLE MRARBESE - AREEM
MERNTRLERMIFEO MU IR FRAIF]
B — S EE

ARAB—BRERRAT o ARAREH
BAR (78 [ AEE) EBHER - H
REME - EERHENE R ABES R
R -

REMBRRAARE [ARE] 25 A
RETR/ARNRBNNEEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P BHmRE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 &t —ZF— N+ - A =+—HI-FF

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time in the current year:

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 15

Financial Instruments

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments

HK(FRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4

Insurance Contracts

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKAS 28 As part of the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR HRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 37 DECEMBER 2018 # % —ZF— )\ E+ = A=+—HIFF/Z

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

2.1HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 15 superseded HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS
11 Construction Contracts and the related interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively with the
cumulative effect of initial applying this Standard recognised at
the date of initial application, 1 January 2018. Any difference
at the date of initial application is recognised in the opening
retained profits (or other components of equity, as appropriate)
and comparative information has not been restated.
Furthermore, in accordance with the transition provisions
in HKFRS 15, the Group has elected to apply the Standard
retrospectively only to contracts that are not completed at 1
January 2018. Accordingly, certain comparative information
may not be comparable as comparative information was
prepared under HKAS 18 Revenue and HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts and the related interpretations.

The Group recognises revenue from the following major
sources of sales of optical and optical-related products which
arise from contracts with customers:

e Optical Components

e Optoelectronic Products

e Optical Instruments

Information about the Group’s performance obligations and

the accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS
15 are disclosed in Notes 5 and 3 respectively.
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e P BHmRE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 #Z —ZE— \FE+_-HA=+—HI-FZF

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

2.1HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS
15

The impact of transition to HKFRS 15 arising from the initial
application of HKFRS 15 on the Group’s major revenue
generating operation was insignificant on retained profits at
1 January 2018.

The following adjustments were made to the amounts
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at 1 January 2018. Line items that were not affected by the
changes have not been included.

Carrying
amounts
previously
reported at
31 December

2. BRI RGBT E BN
WEEA ([FEMBHREE

|
)

\

—
| Se—
L—
~
—~
Sp
A

2QAERBY B REERNFISKEFFLS
WA (48)

BREAEEHHIREERE 165G EL
ZEEBR

MR EEY SRS EAF155% &R ER
RAKBERABEBMELNBES
RV BRELEE1HE —T—/\F
—A-BRBABEINZELIFEK -

R-ZZ-N\F—A—-BHEEMBHRRER
RRERNZRETIANIIFEE - RIIRAK
XBFLENAR -

Carrying
amounts under
HKFRS 15 at

1 January

2017 | Reclassification |Remeasurement 2018

R=-Z2—+t#%
+=A=+-8
KR 2|
IREE
RMB’000
AREFT

Current Liabilities B & &
Trade and other payables

B 5 R A ETRIE (@) 6,182,802
Contract liabilities & 418 & (@) -

(@) As at 1 January 2018, advances from customers of
RMB76,050,000 previously included in trade and other
payables were reclassified to contract liabilities.

R-ZB—-N\F

—A—RERBHK

& ERH155

EFSE EfTE BT HEREE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETTT ARET T

(76,050) - 6,106,752
76,050 - 76,050

@ R=F-N\F—A—8 %HEHA
B9 R A E P BRA
R #76,050,000E#H D ERE X
B -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR HRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 37 DECEMBER 2018 # % —ZF— )\ E+ = A=+—HIFF/Z

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. BRI REEITRRBUK
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG WELEA ([BRMBREE
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS A1) (#)

(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

2.1HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with 2AERMBRELERNFEISREFS
Customers (Continued) AP A (&)
Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS BREAE B EERE 159 EL
15 (Continued) ZEER I ()
The following table summarises the impacts of applying TERBMERE SRS ERFE5
HKFRS 15 on the Group’s consolidated statement of financial REHAEER T N\FF+_H="4—
position as at 31 December 2018 for each of the line items HBRREH BRI RS EIHE N
affected. Line items that were not affected by the changes 2o RITAZEBEZEHIFER o

have not been included.
Impact on the consolidated statement of financial position Hira WK R T E

Amounts

without

application of

As reported | Adjustments HKFRS 15
BERAESE

B 3 5 45 2 B

2 ;| FE| F15ECEHE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTIT ARETFIT ARBT T

Current Liabilities REI & &
Trade and other payables & 5 K E & {5 38 7,063,861 110,281 7,174,142
Contract liabilities & #1 & & 110,281 (110,281) =
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e P BHmRE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 %= — &

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

2.2HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments and the related consequential amendments to
other HKFRSs. HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for
1) the classification and measurement of financial assets
and financial liabilities, 2) expected credit losses (“ECL”) for
financial assets and 3) general hedge accounting.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with the
transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9, i.e. applied the
classification and measurement requirements (including
impairment under ECL model) retrospectively to instruments
that have not been derecognised as at 1 January 2018 (date
of initial application) and has not applied the requirements
to instruments that have already been derecognised as at 1
January 2018. The difference between carrying amounts as at
31 December 2017 and the carrying amounts as at 1 January
2018 are recognised in the opening retained profits and
other components of equity, without restating comparative
information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was prepared
under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement.

Accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS 9 are
disclosed in Note 3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR HRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 37 DECEMBER 2018 # % —ZF— )\ E+ = A=+—HIFF/Z

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. BRI REIETBARINE
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG wmEEL ([BEEUBREE
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS Al]) (&)

(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

2.2HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued) 22ERBMBHRELENFOREHMT A

(%)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 9 R JEFF BB TR EI < 7 &
The table below illustrates the classification and measurement TREARVIAERBE (BI=ZZ—N\F
(including impairment) of financial assets and other items —A—H) BEEBMBEHRELELFI
subject to ECL under HKFRS 9 and HKAS 39 at the date of BB EREIFAETEREE
initial application, 1 January 2018. EENEMEEREMIEL 2o EMG

E (BfERE) -

Financial
Financial assets
Available- assets at FVTPL Equity | Trade and
for-sale | designated | required by | instruments other | Deferred tax FVTOCI Retained
investments at FVTPL HKFRS9 | atFVTOCI | receivables liabilities reserve profits
BERHE
HEES

EEAR | ROUEX | ROAEHA

RAESA | RARESA | Rt 2ENE BORERA

Rith Rith kL R 2EhE
TREERE | SREE | SREE | REIR BLHEAR | SIRNESE
RMB'000 |  RMB'000 |  RMBOOO [  RMB'00O RMB'000 | RMB'000
ARRTT | ARRTR | ARETRL | ARMTR ARETR | ARETR

Closing balance at 31 December
2017 - HKAS 39
RZZ-tETZA=t-RH
HRER - FRETERE0R 129,373 1,952,340 - - 5410,033 106,895 - 6,797,159
Effect arising from initial
application of HKFRS 9:
NRERERHEREES
Hofvee.
Reclassification 478
From available-for-sale investments
BARIERE (a) (129,373)
From designated at FVTPL
BEERAA BT AR (b) - (19523400 1,952,340 - - - - -

36,750 92,628 = = = =

Remeasurement E5;t &
Impairment under ECL model
BHEEBREABTHRE ) - - - - (1,966) - - (1,966)
From cost less impairment
to fair values ERABALERE () = - - 41,433 - 6,215 35,218 -

Opening balance at 1 January 2018
R-Z-NE-B-ANSNLeH - - 1,989,090 134,056 5,408,067 113,110 35,218 6,795,193
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e P BHmRE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 &t —ZF— N+ - A =+—HI-FF

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

2.2HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS
9 (Continued)

(@) Available-for-sale (“AFS”) investments

From AFS equity investments to fair value through other
comprehensive income

The Group elected to present in other comprehensive
income (“OCI”) for the fair value changes of part of
its equity investments previously classified as
available-for-sale investments. These investments are
not held for trading and not expected to be sold in
the foreseeable future. At the date of initial application
of HKFRS 9, RMB92,623,000 were reclassified from
available-for-sale investments to equity instruments
at FVTOCI, which were unquoted equity investments
previously measured at cost less impairment under HKAS
39. The fair value gains of RMB35,218,000 after tax
relating to those unquoted equity investments previously
carried at cost less impairment were adjusted to equity
instruments at FVTOCI and FVTOCI reserve as at 1
January 2018.

From AFS investments to FVTPL

At the date of initial application of HKFRS 9, the Group’s
equity investments of RMB36,750,000 were reclassified
from available-for-sale investments to financial assets at
FVTPL. The fair value changes were insignificant since
these investments were made within the past one year
and developed in the very early stage with no business
changes after the commencement.

22F B ELERFR LT A
(#8)

IR EBEENEHEEREIN &
#at (&)
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BAH E#mREZZANA B
AE 2 7 5k

AEBEZEERDERAELEE
KEMI D REREN A R EE

E2IREMEEKE ([EME2EK
wm]) P REREWIIERFIEESR -
BEEHTeRERNARAREE -
R F1IR FE FR B P8 B 765 3R 15 22 RI 22 955
2B &% A AK®92,623,0007T
WIEE BRI REERESHHAE
RAREFARMEERKET R
EmTE ZETEALABES
75 & 5T 2% Rl 5395 1% Ak AN JBURL (B & T
EMIELEMRERE - EZF LA
2 X ASRUR (B 51| BR 89 JF E T AR R R
& iE M A R %35,218,0007T &) £
BARBEBRER-ZE—NEFE—A—
H#EESEA R BT AH 2K
@A EMESETAREAREA
Hitn 2 ER =T BERFEE -

B’ EREZRAA B A Bz

ROREREEVBREERNE
Rz A AEBLEAARY
36,750,000 A i #E 1% & B A #t
EREETHEERAABENAR
mHERMEE BHRZEREDIR
BE—FREL BERVBAER
PEER - WARSIRREBNE AR
BEEBL FERX o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR HRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 37 DECEMBER 2018 # % —ZF— )\ E+ = A=+—HIFF/Z

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

2.2HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS
9 (Continued)

(b) Financial assets at FVTPL and/or designated at FVTPL

At the date of initial application, the Group no longer
applied designation as measured at FVTPL for the
unlisted financial products and structured deposits and
the portfolio of financial assets which is managed and
its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, as
these financial assets are required to be measured at
FVTPL under HKFRS 9. As a result, the fair value of these
investments of RMB1,952,340,000 were reclassified from
financial assets designated at FVTPL to financial assets
at FVTPL at 1 January 2018.

Impairment under ECL model

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach
to measure ECL which uses a lifetime ECL for all trade
receivables. Except for those which had been determined
as credit impaired under HKAS 39, trade receivables are
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and

aging.

ECL for other financial assets at amortised cost, including
other receivables, amount due from a related party,
pledged bank deposits, short term fixed deposits and
bank balances and cash, are assessed on 12m ECL basis
as there had been no significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition.

22FBUMBHELEANFIONEHMTA
(&)

VIRIEB BB F IR BRI FEIN < &
#at (&)

b) BRARBEFHAEBER HIEERR
RREFABRZEREE

RYIXERBE  AEBETHER
EEARANBABRUGESR
ITTEemER AEETRERSHM
BEREHEE (NEAREEBRT
HERR) REAZSSRMEEZAR
RER BB MEERIZIRIZ AR
Bt ABzstE - At - ZEKRE
Z AR EARE1,952,340,0007T B
HETERARBFABRZERME
EEF EAR_Z—N\F—A—
BRARBNABRZEMEE -

() REMEEEBREXRETHRE

AEBRAEBYERE LR FEINR
BIEAAFBEBEEEE &5
ARAEESRERBERABEHE
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 #Z —ZE— \FE+_-HA=+—HI-FZF

‘lll'

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
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2.2HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

VIREREEN B HEERFEINR &
#at (&)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS

9 (Continued)

(c) Impairment under ECL model (Continued) (c) BHEEBBEEXETHRE (B)
RZZE—NF—H—HB @8RA
R 1,966,0007T 8 88 /Ms B B 1B #
BEBRBAENDHER - FINEIE
BHEBHEEEETNR -

As at 1 January 2018, the additional credit loss allowance
of RMB1,966,000 has been recognised against retained
profits. The additional loss allowance is charged against
the respective asset.

N—ZE—+FE+-A=+—BHmn
BEeREEEFBRREE (BEBEHRHE
fil FE U ZRIE - RE UK B A T FRIE -
ERFERITER  RHEHRTRE
RITEBRERE) BR T —NF—
A—BNFBERESROT

All loss allowances for financial assets (including trade
and other receivables, amount due from a related party,
pledged bank deposits, short term fixed deposits and
bank balances and cash) as at 31 December 2017
reconcile to the opening loss allowance as at 1 January
2018 is as follows:

Amounts

Trade and
other
receivables

Ea R
ERFHE
RMB'000

N

At 31 December 2017 - HKAS 39
RZE—+tF+=A=+—H

due from
related
parties
EkmE
ATHE
RMB’000
ARETFT

Pledged
bank
deposits
2R
RITEX
RMB’000
ARETT

Short
term fixed
deposits

BHERER
RMB'000
ARBTT

Bank
balances
and cash

RITERR
ke
RMB’000
ARBTT

— BB ERIF39% (96,850) - - - -
Amounts remeasured through opening

retained profits
BRRNRERNENTENGE (1,966) = < = -
At 1 January 2018 R=E—N\F—F—H (98,816) - = = -
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e PR HRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 37 DECEMBER 2018 # % —ZF— )\ E+ = A=+—HIFF/Z

2. BRI REBTERYR
HEA ((BEBUBHREE
A1) (&)

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

2.3Impacts on opening consolidated statement of

23IEAMAEHERYHFANRENH

financial position arising from the application MRTRATE

of all new standards

As a result of the changes in the Group’s accounting policies HR LM EREETHRREEZE (L F1
above, the opening consolidated statement of financial REMBEARRNKBES - TREH

EBEHBERRANBE - RIITA
SREYENER -

position had to be restated. The following table shows the
adjustments recognised for each of the line item affected.
Line items that were not affected by the changes have not
been included.

31 December
2017 (Audited) HKFRS 9 | 2018 (Restated)

—E—+F —E-N\E
+ZA=1+—RH | ERUERE | EBEUERS —HA—H
R E 9% (RE7)
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBF T ARBF T

1 January
HKFRS 15

(RER) | ERE155%

RMB’000
ARBTT

RMB’000
ARBTT

Non-current Assets FEREIEE

Available-for-sale investments AJ fit ! & #% & 129,373
Financial assets at FVTPL

BAREAEBENSHEE - - 36,750 36,750
Equity instruments at FVTOCI

BARBEFAEMZERGEER T =

Current Assets FEEE
Trade and other receivables and prepayment

(129,373) =

134,056 134,056

85 R H USRI R R ROR

5,665,689 - (1,966)

5,663,723

Current liabilities R & &
Trade and other payables & 5} £t &+ 208
Contract liabilities & #4718 (&

6,182,802

(76,050) = 6,106,752
76,050 = 76,050

Non-current liabilities FER B & &
Deferred tax liabilities EETHIBE &

106,895

= 6,215 113,110

Capital and Reserves R R 5
Reserves

7,383,342

= 33,252 7,416,594

Note:

The net effects arising from the initial application of HKFRS 15 and
HKFRS 9 on the carrying amount of interests in associates on the
opening consolidated financial statements was insignificant in the
opinion of the directors of the Company.

For the purpose of reporting cash flows from operating activities under
indirect method for the year ended 31 December 2018, movement in
working capital have been computed based on opening consolidated
statement of financial position as at 1 January 2018 as disclosed
above.

BYAE

ARBREERR  VFRBEBUBHREER
E16%% R BB MW E LR FORH F R
PMEHRNB LA B EEREENFZEL T
ESpND

BRTINRETZBREBE_T—N\F+_A
=t HIEMELEBEENRSRE - WL
MRS €EESEPR_F - N\F—A—
B HIE A M BARN KA E -
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e P BHmRE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 &t —ZF— N+ - A =+—HI-FF

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

WEEA ([FRMBHREE
811 (%)

C MR RERB T REETE
78 B 75 R o 2

7% 82 [ 3 48 3R 4R A A T B AR M 1B 14 R A 2
BORT AT RAR(E 7] BB R T 3R o 2R -

EARBMERAE 6T HE

effective:
HKFRS 16 Leases’
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?®

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23
Amendments to HKFRS 3
Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 19
Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRSs

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments’
Definition of a Business*

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation’
Sale or Contribution of Assets

between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?
Definition of Material®

Plan Amendment, Curtailment
or Settlement’

Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures'

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle!

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

determined.

< Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

& Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which
the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual

period beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

BRRBIwEERETH
B8 (ARMBHERE
%289)- REF235%
BRI IS R EIR
CHEN)
BRI IS =R FOHR
CHEN)
BRI S R 105
REBGTERIF28H
CHEN)
EAGRERE15
(BFIX) hBEES
LRIFESH (BFTA)
BEBGRHERFE 195

RERE AP

PrigHEEL
THEE

B EE

ABBWHEZIEE
T
REZREBENA
AAEBPREAER
AL
BAMTEE

STEIEET ~ AERiat

CHEN) a5
BB G ERFH 285 REERAZHE Z
CHEN) PR R
BRI B IS 2R —E-0FF
CHEN) —E—tFHYH
BER B EEA
FRE

VR AF A HEZRRARZFERE

BERA =

2 RREEZ BEZ REGZ FEERAER

¢ R —F-A-HIAZRRAKBZFEE

BERA =

f EBAREERENEBERHRN T -F
F-A—-BAxz&FnZ &EFERRNFRSG

Except for the new HKFRS mentioned below, the directors of the
Company anticipated that the application of all other new and
amendments to HKFRSs would have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

o RER

o RIZBTE-A-ARHzKFEBZFEHRE
ERR o

BRTXFtESN - ARBEEEY - EAZ

BRI BB B RE LR MEFTTHAE
BRAIR AR Z G RMBHRRABERTE
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e PR HRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 37 DECEMBER 2018 # % —ZF— )\ E+ = A=+—HIFF/Z

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification
of lease arrangement and accounting treatments for both lessors
and lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the
related interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis
of whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer. In
addition, HKFRS 16 requires sales and leaseback transactions
to be determined based on the requirements of HKFRS 15 as to
whether the transfer of the relevant asset should be accounted as
a sale. HKFRS 16 also includes requirements relating to subleases
and lease modifications.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are removed
for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model where a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have to be
recognised for all leases by lessees, except for short-term leases
of low value assets.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted
for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease liability
is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments
that are not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is
adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as the impact
of lease modifications, amongst others. For the classification of
cash flows, the Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease
payments as investing cash flows in relation to leasehold lands
for owned use and those classified as investment properties
while other operating lease payments are presented as operating
cash flows. Upon application of HKFRS 16, lease payments in
relation to lease liability will be allocated into a principal and an
interest portion which will be presented as financing cash flows
by the Group, upfront prepaid lease payments will continue to be
presented as investing or operating cash flows in accordance to
the nature, as appropriate.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised prepaid
lease payments for leasehold lands where the Group is a lessee.
The application of HKFRS 16 may result in potential changes in
classification of these assets depending on whether the Group
presents right-of-use assets separately or within the same line
item at which the corresponding underlying assets would be
presented if they were owned.

Other than certain requirements which are also applicable
to lessor, HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor
accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to require a
lessor to classify a lease either as an operating lease or a finance
lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of RMB155,164,000 as disclosed in Note 39.
A preliminary assessment indicates that these arrangements will
meet the definition of a lease. Upon application of HKFRS 16, the
Group will recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability in respect of all these leases unless they qualify for low
value or short-term leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental
deposits paid of RMB290,000 as rights under leases to which
HKAS 17 applies. Based on the definition of lease payments under
HKFRS 16, such deposits are not payments relating to the right
to use the underlying assets, accordingly, the carrying amounts
of such deposits may be adjusted to amortised cost. Adjustment
to refundable rental deposits paid would be considered as
additional lease payments and included in the carrying amount of
right-of-use assets.

The application of new requirements may result in changes
in measurements, presentation and disclosure as indicated
above. The Group has elected the practical expedient to apply
HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously identified as leases
applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4. Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease and not apply this standard to
contracts that were not previously identified as containing a lease
applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4. Therefore, the Group does
not reassess whether the contracts are, or contain a lease which
already existed prior to the date of initial application. Furthermore,
the Group has elected the modified retrospective approach for
the application of HKFRS 16 as lessee and will recognise the
cumulative effect of initial application to opening retained profits
without restating comparative information.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that
are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period,
as explained in the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within
the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions
that are within the scope of HKAS 17 Leases, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

e |Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at
the measurement date;

e | evel 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

e has power over the investee;

e is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if

facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group’s equity therein, which represent present
ownership interests entitling their holders to a proportionate share
of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not result
in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted
for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
relevant components of equity and the non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries, including re-attribution of relevant reserves between
the Group and the non-controlling interests according to the
Group’s and the non-controlling interests’ proportionate interests.

3. EEGF XK (#)

mEE%E (&)

REBESHE R REGIERSEEGES A
B MEARSEEREMEBQEZEGER - A
THHEGAAKR - ABME BAKEE
GHBAREREZBFE BEEAKED
BREMBARZHEZAL  AFEKE
S ENBRARZBARRAXEIIALZE R
sRHEMEEREERA -

wAREENE MM EEWESIAGREBERNA
NAREEIEERER - IMB AR ZHE K
HAEERBN AR RRR R IEZERER - A
FUHBRSEBHIHERERE LB MER

MEBEARZHMBHRRENTEENBER MMEL
AE - LEESFFBRRERNEEN G TR
7§ﬂ ®

SEARFIRZHEEERAE - #x  WK
A AXEEBAREKERRERZ 2R
EREBINGAREREZEEH -

B 8 A Bl SR IR A d an R AN SR B0 E AR ) M R
DFEEN  ERXRBREMEERZANER
Wil T HI5 A AR DGR B ARE
EFEZ T g -

AEEREEHBEL AR mZ

AEERKBARMNERD 2 EBI T EHA
SEREHMBARNEGIE - WIARRR
ZARR o NEE 2 s N IF1E I 51 4H A BD
D ZREES T IABAE - ARBRE S B
NEEAER 22 BRREASEEF
122 Pl v o B M 2 Lt D) E5 R R BB AN SR B B R 4
PSR A B R -



FETIERE (£H) BRAT « 2018 FiK 173

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR HRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 37 DECEMBER 20718 # % —ZF— &+ A=+—HI-FEZ

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
(Continued)

Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted after re-attribution of the relevant equity
component, and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners
of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any)
are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and
is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the
fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (i) the previous carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable to
the owners of the Company. All amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or
loss or transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost
is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKFRS 9/HKAS 39 or, when applicable, the
cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate.

3. EEGF XK (#)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value at the
acquisition date, except that:

e deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes and
HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

e liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to replace
share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment
at the acquisition date (see the accounting policy below); and

e assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale
in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance
with that standard.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net
amount of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If,
after re-assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of
the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the
excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the relevant
subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation are initially
measured at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets
or at fair value. The choice of measurement basis is made on a
transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling
interests are measured at their fair value.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated
in these consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. The financial statements of associates
used for equity accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances. Appropriate adjustments
have been made to confirm the associate’s accounting policies
to those of the Group. Under the equity method, investment in
an associate is initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate. Change in net assets of the associate
other than profit or loss and other comprehensive income are
not accounted for unless such changes resulted in changes
in ownership interest held by the Group. When the Group’s
share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group’s interest
in that associate (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of that associate.

—NFE+—A=+—HIFFE

. EEg

ATBUR ()

REBERNTZRE

éé%ﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁléﬁﬁﬂﬁiﬁ??;ﬁZ%’f

B EAFENE2ERBHURYBRE

RE N MIIFHAZFRRZE %U%T@
SR -

fERNRZEE  EEMNBEEREDRER
EREARG AWM REK - S SFHERE
2B N B BA T AR T 4% BN 5 B s R R AL
BER TR REMHFERAERR S IK
RimE - RERABLRANEABRELRSE
BHEFRE -3 CIEHEEHE - RE
% RBERRZRERKYIIRAAE
RERA M BN RIER - WREERILERAR
SEEIEZ %%’“72%@@&%@5@1&
ML AR - B K E ARG K ey B =
REEERENEDHIEAR  RIFAR
EHEYAKERENMEREaELS
F o mAKEREBRERR CERBBARE
BRBENR S (BEREELEERAE
ERE SRR E 2 RP#ER) - AIX
SEeRIIEREBEZE-—FTER - MK
SECELZEREEREIRERZBERD
A NRIR - BB RSN IR 1R IR



FETIERE (£H) BRAT « 2018 FiK 177

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR HRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 37 DECEMBER 20718 # % —ZF— &+ A=+—HI-FEZ

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Investments in associates (Continued)

An investment in associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate. On acquisition of the investments in associates, any
excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of an associate
recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as goodwill,
which is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the
period in which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that
the interest in an associate may be impaired. When any objective
evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs
to sell) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal
of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest in the former
associate and the retained interest is a financial asset within the
scope of HKAS 39, the Group measures the retained interest
at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair
value on initial recognition. The difference between the carrying
amount of the associate and the fair value of any retained interest
and any proceeds from disposing the relevant interest in the
associate is included in the determination of the gain or loss on
disposal of the associate. In addition, the Group accounts for all
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that associate on the same basis as would be required
if that associate had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income by that associate would be reclassified to
profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the
Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as
a reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of the
relevant associate.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an investment
in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture or an
investment in a joint venture becomes an investment in an
associate. There is no remeasurement to fair value upon such
changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate
but the Group continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that
had previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate are recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the associate that are
not related to the Group.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in Note 2)

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the
goods or services underlying the particular performance obligation
is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct
goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group
performs;

e the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that
the customer controls as the Group performs; or

e the Group’s performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in Note 2) (Continued)

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer.

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 January 2018)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer
returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured, when it is probably that future economic benefits will
flow to the Group and when specific criteria have been met for
each of the Group’s activities, as described below.

Goods, services and interests

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and titles have passed.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable,
which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquisiting land
held under operating leases, are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property interest which
included both leasehold land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an
operating lease separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
each element have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear
that both elements are operating leases in which case the entire
property is accounted as an operating lease. Specifically, the
entire consideration (including any lump-sum upfront payments)
are allocated between the land and the building elements in
proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in
the land element and building element at initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
Leasehold land and building (Continued)

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as
an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payment” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis. When the lease payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the leasehold land and
building elements, the entire property is generally classified as if
the leasehold land is under finance lease.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional currency
of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the
date when fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Renminbi) at exchange rate prevailing at the end of
each reporting period. Income and expense items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of translation reserve
(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that
the Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income in the
consolidated statement of financial position and transferred to
profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful
lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. EEEFTHXE (&)
POLICIES (Continued)
Retirement benefit costs EIRER LA
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are SR R R KR R ET B BONME B IR AR
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service BB RESHARERRRAY -

entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits EHESER
Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the HHEERANEEREREHENEBEHR
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as MATEEANSERHER - BRIEBES —BE
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term B mEERRESEFEHESENE S
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless another REEKEEBIA - BRIFTEEEESET
HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the HRER BRI -

cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees EEEEF (Hlin TEME < - FRER
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after B) RIURERE N RERAEE -

deducting any amount already paid.



FETIERE (£H) BRAT « 2018 FiK 185

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR HRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 37 DECEMBER 20718 # % —ZF— &+ A=+—HI-FEZ

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Shares granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date.

For shares of the Company granted under The Sunny Optical
Technology (Group) Company Limited Restricted Share Award
Scheme (“Restricted Shares”), the fair value of the employee
services received is determined by reference to the fair value of the
Restricted Shares granted at the grant date and is expensed on
a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share award scheme reserve). At the end of
each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of Restricted Shares that are expected to vest based on
assessment of all relevant non-market vesting conditions. The
impact of the revision of the estimates, if any, is recognised in
the profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share award
scheme reserve.

When the Restricted Shares are vested, the difference of the
amount previously recognised in the share award scheme reserve
and the cost of the related Restricted Shares previously acquired
by the Group will be transferred to retained profits. When the
Restricted Shares are lapsed before the vesting date or are still
not vested at the expiry date, the amount of previously recognised
in the share award scheme reserve will continue to be held in the
share award scheme reserve.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represent the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all temporary differences to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which
to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

3. EEGF XK (#)

BIE

FT 15 75 7 S 5 BN 87 & <) 77 78 ER 3R AE ¢ TH A 48
A o

RN HRERBEAFREBRBENGTH -
ERTUGE A AR A Ba At 2R R
HEDBRBEADE M AR - b TR E M EE A
FERBH AT MR IIAR - ARBARDHK
TRAMRIBE B - ARERHHERE
REBEEREHRCEMIELERMOHRE
tH -

BEREFARGAMBHRRPEERAERT
BEEFHEERPENPIRAAERE TR
ZHER - EXEHBERBE —RAABERN
ER=EERAAR BERBEE—RILA
BEREZREIANE  EREE ERTE T
AREHAHNRERER - EX—HRX S
T BREREERARE (XBKEHRIN)
5|2z E i Z BT 8 RRTOL A I A
FEE N AT eRRBZFELHEE
ENAE-

BEEHBEABIRAMB AR RBERRZ
REMELBRRNE R EZRETHER - MW
AEBREEFERER AL AERERE
AIRET @M A] R ARz E 2 BN AR - B
BEEZSRENTINRERZRMELNE
JERIIAE B (2 12 AJ BEAE A J2 50 8 AR A5 i A1) A
150 P BT A 22 RR M 2 3P TR B RE S0 1E AT R SR
(O] R FE 53



FEFRERE (RE) ERAF ¢ 2018 3 187

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR HRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 37 DECEMBER 20718 # % —ZF— &+ A=+—HI-FEZ

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax
assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land and
buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes, other than construction
in progress, are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the
appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these
assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences
when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses. Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
investment properties over their estimated useful lives and after
taking into account of their estimated residual value, using the
straight-line method.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period
in which the property is derecognised.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately
are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets
with finite useful lives is recognised on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted
for on a prospective basis.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Internally-generated intangible assets — research and development
expenditures

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in
the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
activities (or from the development phase of an internal project)
is recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been
demonstrated:

the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale;

e the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell
it;

e the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

e how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

e the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset; and

e the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to
the intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible
asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when
the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above.
Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible
assets are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses (if any), on the same basis as
intangible assets acquired separately.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment on tangible and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite
useful lives to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of tangible and intangible assets are
estimated individually, when it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which
the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a
cash-generating unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows
have not been adjusted.
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BB mRME

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets
(Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or the cash-generating unit) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on a
pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in
the unit. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below
the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable),
its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to
the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted average
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price
for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance with
HKFRS 15 since 1 January 2018. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees
and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset or
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.
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